
 

 

 

 

 

Photo by Andrew Small 



POSTED November 13, 2017 

 

GRAND JUNCTION REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

 

Date:  November 16, 2017 

 

Location: GRAND JUNCTION CITY HALL 

  250 N. 5TH ST  

  GRAND JUNCTION, CO 81501 

  HEARING ROOM    

 

WORKSHOP 

 

Time: 4:00PM 

 

I. Call Workshop to Order 

 

II. Approval of Workshop Agenda 

 

III. Discussion Items 

 Mead & Hunt – Terminal Building 

 

IV. Adjourn Workshop 

 

Time: 5:15 PM 

 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA  

 

I. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

 

II. Approval of Agenda 

 

III. Commissioner Comments 

 

IV. Citizens Comments 

The Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority welcomes public comments at its 

meetings. The Citizens Comment period is open to all individuals that would like to 

comment. If you wish to speak under the Citizens Comment portion of the agenda, 

please fill out a comment card prior to the meeting. If you have a written statement 

for the Board, please have 10 copies available and give them to the Clerk for 

distribution to the Board. The Board Chairman will indicate when you may come 

forward and comment. Please state your name for the record. 

 

V. Consent Agenda 

The Consent Agenda is intended to allow the Board to spend its time on the more 

complex items on the agenda. These items are perceived as non-controversial and can 



POSTED November 13, 2017 

be approved by a single motion. The public or Board Members may ask that an item 

be removed from the Consent Agenda and be considered individually. 

A. October 17, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes     1 

B. G4S invoice approval        2 

C. Airport Rescue & Fire Fighting packs bid approval    3 

D. Sunshine Rides addendum       4 

E. Ground Lease application        5 

F. G4S addendum        6 

G. Mead & Hunt design build consulting invoice    7 

H. Mead & Hunt terminal renovations invoice     8 

I. Garver east apron invoice       9 

 

VI. Staff Reports 

A. Directors report (Mark Achen) 

B. Financial report (Ty Minnick)       10 

C. Activity report (Shelagh O’Kane)      11 

 

VII. Discussion/Action Items 

A. Commemorative Air Force (Ty Minnick)     12 

B. Solar status update (Ben Peck)      13 

C. Airport project invoices, grants and updates (Eric Trinklein) 

1. Mead & Hunt invoice – runway design     14 

2. IHC invoice – east apron        15 

3. IHC change order – east apron      16 

4. Grant application – Taxiway A rehabilitation    17 

5. Grant application – 27 ¼ Road      18 

6. Grant application – RTR relocation      19 

D. Minimum Standards Committee update 

 

VIII. Any other business which may come before the Board 

 

IX. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 



October 17, 2017 Minutes – Page 1 

 

 

 

Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority Board 

Board Meeting 

 Meeting Minutes 

October 17, 2017 

 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

Time: 5:15PM 

I. Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance. 

Mr. Rick Taggart, Board Chairman, called the Meeting of the Grand Junction Regional 

Airport Authority Board to order at 5:15 PM on October 17, 2017 in Grand Junction, 

Colorado and in the County of Mesa. 

 

II. Approval of Agenda 

 

Commissioner Brabaek commented on item H in the Consent Agenda. Commissioner 

Brabaek asked Mr. Chance Ballegeer to verify that the shaded area in the board packets is 

not drawn to scale.  

 

Mr. Ballegeer verified that the shaded area is not drawn to scale. Mr. Ballegeer said that 

if this it approved, one of the things they would ask for is for a survey to be done.  

 

Chairman Taggart stated that item E. Standard Ground Transportation Permit, he was a 

bit confused with the summary because there were two sets of rates and charges. 

Chairman Taggart clarified that the basic rates and charges are being replaced by the trip 

Commissioners Present: 

Rick Taggart, Chairman 

Tom Benton 

Chuck McDaniel 

Tim Pollard 

Robin Brown 

Erling Brabaek 

 

Airport Staff: 

Mark Achen 

Victoria Hightower, Clerk 

Chance Ballegeer, Deputy Clerk 

Ty Minnick 

Shelagh O’Kane 

Eric Trinklein  

Other: 

Shannon Kinslow, TOIL 

Larry Kempton Jr., Plane Storage 

Brad Rolf, Mead & Hunt 

Larry Kempton Sr., Kempton Air 

Colin Bible, Garver 

Frank Mcillwain, Garver 

Tyler McClymond, Citizen 

John Manee, DOWL 

Drew Armstrong, Finance&Audit Committee  



October 17, 2017 Minutes – Page 2 

 

 

charges. Chairman Taggart stated that the seconded item within it is actually in the 

business permit itself, section 3.03.Chairman Taggart said that he asked Mr. Achen and 

Mr. Minnick to potentially put this on discussion because he was worried about the 

second sentence because it was too vague about the cost of the AVI permit, but Mr. 

Minnick said that he would add “not to exceed $50. Chairman Taggart said with that 

modification he would leave it on the Consent Agenda.  

 

Chairman Taggart stated that Mr. Minnick would like to add an item to the Consent 

Agenda an invoice for a transmission for the Airport’s Stewart & Stevenson snow 

blower. 

 

Commissioner Brown moved for the Board to accept the agenda. Commissioner Benton 

seconded, noting the amendments as discussed. Voice Vote. All Ayes.    

  

III. Commissioner Comments 

 

Commissioner Benton thanked the staff for dealing with the changes of TSA. 

 

IV. Citizens Comments 

Larry Kempton Jr. - Plane Storage  

Mr. Kempton commented on consent agenda item H. Mr. Kempton said that he has an 

old document that shows a 33ft. area that Plane Storage would have to use to get out and 

he wanted to make sure that the Board has the ability to look at that and staff is looking at 

it also. 

 

Mr. Minnick stated that they approved the lease application, that didn’t approve the 

building site. They are doing a review of the building site to determine the setbacks from 

the property line. 

 

Mr. Eric Trinklein stated that what is on the consent agenda is a preliminary application. 

 

V. Consent Agenda 

a. September 21, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes 

b. G4s invoice approval 

c. ADK inoice approval 

d. Mead & Hunt invoice approval – passenger boarding bridge 

e. Standard Ground Transportation Permit 

f. Rates & Charges amendment 

g. Passenger Facility Charge application 

h. Ground Lease application 

i. Invoice for Stewart & Stevenson snow blower 

 

Commissioner Brown made a motion for the Board to approve the Consent Agenda 

with the amended changes. Commissioner Brabaek seconded. Voice Vote. All Ayes.  

    

VI. Staff Reports 



October 17, 2017 Minutes – Page 3 

 

 

A. Directors report 

Mr. Achen briefed the board on the screening issue with the TSA security check 

point. 

 

B. Financial report 

Mr. Minnick briefed the Board on the airport’s current financial status (financial 

results report created by Ty Minnick)  

 

Assets – Cash and accounts receivable combined are consistent with prior year. The 

increase in accounts receivable is a result of payments due from FAA for AIP projects 

52 and 54 for a total of approximately $800,000. Both projects have been submitted 

for reimbursement.  

 

Liabilities – The accounts payable balance was reduced in February for the payment 

for approximately $520,000 due to the FAA, along with the payments to Jviation and 

Armstrong. 

 

Aeronautical Revenue – Ahead of budget and prior year, year-to-date. The increase 

is consistent with the increase in year-to-date enplanement. The detail air service 

information is provided in the Activity Update of the board packet. 

 
Non-Aeronautical Revenue – Parking and rental cars remain strong to bring total 

operating revenue for 2018 to $4,731,000 versus $4,576,000 for 2017, approximately 

$155,000 ahead of prior year. 

 

Operating Expense – The total operating expense is $215,000 ahead of budget and 

$157,000 ahead of prior year. The majority of the variance is effected by the cost 

savings from legal fees incurred in 2016. Resulting in an operating gain of $1,859,000 

year-to-date versus $1,548,000 prior year. 

 

 

C. Communications Events and Activity report 

Ms. Shelagh O’Kane, Airport Accountant, briefed the Board. Ms. O’Kane stated that 

overall for the year they are still doing very well compared to the average of the last 

five years. Ms. O’Kane said that enplanements are up almost 6% for month of 

September comparative to the last five years, and year to date they are up by over 8%. 

Ms. O’Kane said that the month of September is down by 3%, though that was not 

entirely unexpected, and year to date just for the month of September they are up by 

4%.  



October 17, 2017 Minutes – Page 4 

 

 

 

   Variance 

 2016 2017 Passengers Percent 

September 

          

21,415  

          

20,701  (213) -3.3% 

YTD 172,585  180,479  7,894  4.3% 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-6.0%

-4.0%

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

14.0%

16.0%

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Enplanements
Current Year vs Prior Year Variance

Month Year



October 17, 2017 Minutes – Page 5 

 

 

 
 

 

   Variance 

 

5 Year 

Avg 2017 Passengers Percent 

September 19,552  20,701  1,149  5.9% 

YTD 166,246  179,978  13,732  8.3% 

 

D. Projects Report 

 

Mr. Trinklein briefed the Board on current projects at the airport. “Thank you for the chance to 

be a part of the large program of projects here. When you see $24M in projects using $1M 

airport cash for 2017/2018. In combination with a $100M Runway Replacement Project, it is 

pretty incredible for a Primary Commercial Airport. 
And we are still moving forward already starting project planning for 2018. Last week we had 

meetings at CDOT and FAA. 

2018 plans for $8M in just FAA projects. 92% of that coming from FAA and CDOT grants.  

Expect to see Grant Applications at the November Board Meeting 

 

Taking a look at the 2017 projects already underway…here are the latest updates”. 

 

Replacement Runway (12/30) 

 

Mead and Hunt should be complete with data collection for the Replacement RW project by 

October 27. 

Mead and Hunt is also in the middle of the Conceptual Design of the RW project, scheduled to 

be completed January 23.  

 

  

 13,000

 14,000

 15,000

 16,000

 17,000

 18,000

 19,000

 20,000

 21,000

 22,000

 23,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

En
p

la
n

em
en

ts

Enplanements 
Current Year vs 5 Year Average

2017 Actual 5 Year Average



October 17, 2017 Minutes – Page 6 

 

 

Passenger Boarding Bridge 
 

Foundation testing on the west ramp was finished October 6 for the passenger boarding bridge 

project.  

The final design for the passenger boarding bridge and fixed walkway should be done by 

November 13. 

 

Terminal Repairs 

Concept design phase is underway for the terminal renovation projects to extend the useful life 

of our existing terminal. A review of the concept design is scheduled for October 31. 

 

East Terminal Apron Project 

The East Commercial Apron project resumed work on October 3  

The current schedule shows concrete pouring beginning October 26 

The first goal is to complete the upper portion of the ramp for a busy diversion season starting 

around Thanksgiving (Nov 22). 

November 6 begins the asphalt baggage ramp portion which scheduled for approximately 12 

days 

The entire project is scheduled to be complete by Jan 3. 

 

 

VII. Discussion/Action Items 

A. Mead & Hunt invoice approval – runway design 

Mr. Trinklein briefed the Board. This invoice is the progress billing for work 

completed on the Replacement Runway Design. Staff has reviewed the invoice and 

concurs with the stated level of completion and recommends paying the invoice.  

 

Staff recommends that the Board approve the payment of Mead & Hunt Invoice No. 

272427, in the amount of $379,700.07. 

   

Commissioner Benton moved for the Board to approve the Mead & Hunt pay request 

for Runway Design invoice No. 272427 in the amount of $379,700.07. Commissioner 

Brown seconded. Voice Vote. All Ayes.  

   

B. Airline lease consult selection & agreement 

 

Commissioner Benton briefed the board. Commissioner Benton stated that fellow 

Commissioner Robin Brown, Drew Armstrong and Suzanne Lay reviewed with Mr. 

Achen and Mr. Minnick the responses to the RFP that was put out. Commissioner 

Benton said that they were pleased they had three qualified firms, DWU Consulting 

Group, L&H Consulting Group and DKMG. The selected consultant will be assisting 

staff with the following:  

 Development of cost centers 

 Establishing rates & charges 

 Conduct airline lease negotiations 

 Draft and finalize airline use and lease agreement 



October 17, 2017 Minutes – Page 7 

 

 

Based on the scope, evaluation and references, the audit committee is recommending 

DKMG. 

 

Commissioner McDaniel moved for the Board to approve DKMG as the Airport’s 

airline lease consultant and authorize the Airport Director to sign the professional 

service agreement. Commissioner Brabaek seconded. Voice Vote. All Ayes.   

 

 

C. 2018 Budget  

 

Mr. Achen and the board locked down a date and time for the ADK meeting. After 

some discussion, October 9, 2017 at 8am was picked for this Executive session 

meeting. 

 

 

D. Business Development Committee  

 

Commissioner Benton briefed the Board. Commissioner Benton recognized Mr. 

Drew Armstrong, fellow Commissioner Robin Brown, Suzanne Lay and along with 

Mr. Minnick and Mr. Achen.  

 

The 2018 Budget draft was reviewed and approved by the audit committee on August 

23, 2017.  At the September 2017 regular board meeting the 2018 Budget draft was 

presented to the board and public for comment.  Additionally, the notice of budget 

was published and made available on the Airport website, no comments have been 

received. The 2018 Budget is conservative with both operating revenue and expense 

showing a modest increase in revenue versus 2017 forecast and larger increases in 

expenses with the expectation of being fully staffed; implementation of a robust air 

service and marketing effort; increased professional services as a result of growth in 

airport projects.  

  

The largest budget line item is the capital projects that account for approximately 

$24,000,000.  Terminal projects account for approximately $9,500,000 while airfield 

projects are budgeted for approximately $13,000,000.  

  

Approval of the 2018 budget and related capital projects (CIP) approves staff to 

process the CIP applications for 2018.  

 

Commissioner Pollard asked what the place holder was for the 2018 budget for the 

skeleton building. 

 

Chairman Taggart said the $1million they budgeted for this year in the event they 

have to take it down rolls over into 2018. 

 

Commissioner Pollard asked what their budget figure is to deal with the customs and 

border patrol facility.  



October 17, 2017 Minutes – Page 8 

 

 

Commissioner Brown said $0 at this point. Commissioner Brown said that there are 

too many unknowns right now. 

 

Considering the amount of the airport’s electric bills, Chairman Taggart stated that it 

is time to get a solar farm. 

 

Mr. Minnick said that they were starting that process to send out an RFP to do solar. 

 

Chairman Taggart asked how soon before they would be able to look at it. 

 

Mr. Minnick said possibly next month. 

 

Commissioner McDaniel made a motion for the Board to approve the 2018 budget. 

Commissioner Brabaek seconded. Roll Call Vote. Commissioner Brabaek: Aye; 

Commissioner Benton: Aye; Chairman Taggart: Aye; Commissioner Brown: Aye; 

Commissioner Pollard: No; Commissioner McDaniel: Aye.     

 

 

E. Administration Building 

1. June 30, 2017 RFP – board response 

Chairman Taggart said that the board needs to conclude and reject the present 

RFP that went out this summer. Chairman Taggart said that the reason why for 

that is because the dollars and cents that are necessary for the Airport Authority to 

conclude that building on its own, they can’t generate the cash flow to complete 

the building. Chairman Taggart said that the estimates are beyond their cash flow 

capabilities without compromising the run way projects and other CIP projects 

that are in the works right now so they need to reject that.  

 

Commissioner Benton made a motion for the Board to rescind and reject the June 

30th 2017 RFP responses that were submitted to the Board. Commissioner 

Pollard seconded. Voice Vote. All Ayes.  

 

2. Building Alternatives 

Commissioner Benton briefed the Board. Commissioner Benton said that the 

building alternatives that the Building Committee have been discussing was to 

pursue public/private partnership RFP/RFQ, which would invite an arrangement 

where the building could be completed by a private sector with the airport being 

the lessee. Commissioner Benton said that they are hopeful to have a draft of that 

at their next meeting.      

  

VIII. Any other business which may come before the Board 

Commissioner Benton stated that in accordance going into Executive Session as required by the 

Colorado Open Meetings Law, a tape recording is being made of our discussions now and 

during the executive session. 

 

All members of the Board are present except Thaddeus Shrader.  There is a quorum present. 



October 17, 2017 Minutes – Page 9 

 

 

 

The topics for discussion in the executive session are: 

 

 Specialized details of security arrangements as authorized by C.R.S. Section 24-6-

402(4)(c) 

 

 Determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations; developing 

strategy for negotiations; and instructing negotiators as authorized by C.R.S. Section 24-

6-402(4)(e) more specifically to review applications for the position of Airport Manager 

 

Each participant must confine his or her discussion to these stated topics of the executive 

session.  No formal action may occur in the executive session. 

 

If at any point in the executive session any participant believes that the discussion is going 

outside the proper scope of the executive session, please interrupt the discussion and make an 

objection. 

 

I NOW MOVE TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS SECURITY DETAILS 

AND APPLICATIONS FOR AIRPORT MANAGER PER THE C.R.S. PREVIOUSLY 

STATED.  WE WILL VOTE ON THIS MOTION BY A ROLL CALL VOTE.  PLEASE 

STATE YOUR NAME AND YOUR VOTE. 

 

Commissioner Brow seconded. Roll Call Vote. Commissioner Brabaek: Aye; Commissioner 

Benton: Aye; Chairman Taggart: Aye; Commissioner Brown: Aye; Commissioner Pollard: Aye; 

Commissioner McDaniel: Aye. 

 

 

IX. Adjournment 

 Open session adjourned at approximately 7:00pm  

 

 

 

Rick Taggart, Board Chairman 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

Chance Ballegeer, Deputy Clerk to the Board 

 

 



Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 

Agenda Item Summary 

TOPIC:  G4S Invoice 

PURPOSE: Information ☐ Guidance ☐ Decision ☒ 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the Board authorize the payment of G4S 
Invoice 8499622 for the amount of $13,852.11 

LAST ACTION: Approved September Invoice. 

DISCUSSION: This invoice is the monthly billing for October 2017 for the 
ongoing monthly costs for security guard services in the 
Terminal. This cost is recovered from signatory air-carriers.  
 
The invoice exceeds $10,000, therefore requiring Board approval. 
 
Staff has verified the amount and the scope of work has been 
completed. 

FISCAL IMPACT: $13,852.11 

COMMUNICATION    
STRATEGY: 

N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: G4S Invoice 8499622 

STAFF CONTACT: Chance Ballegeer 
Email: cballegeer@gjairport.com 
Office: 970-248-8586 
 

 
 
 





Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 

Agenda Item Summary 

TOPIC:  Airport Rescue and Fire Fighting Air Packs 

PURPOSE: Information ☐ Guidance ☐ Decision ☒ 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Board authorize the payment of Municipal 
Emergency Services (MES) Quote #QT1129789 for the amount 
of $49.999.95 

LAST ACTION: None 

DISCUSSION: This quote is for the replacement of our current expiring/aging 
Airport Rescue and Fire Fighting Self Contained Breathing 
Apparatus (SCBA).   Currently the ARFF station has 13 Packs 
and 18 Bottles of which 9 packs and 10 bottles are in need of 
replacement due to age/expiration.  The remaining packs and 
bottles were purchased recently and do not need to be replaced.  
The requested replacements will also allow the ARFF station to 
have one uniform pack and one uniform bottle across all fire 
trucks, increasing firefighter safety.  Due to specific brand 
compatibility requirements, the packs and bottles requested are 
manufactured by Scott, which would match the rest of the current 
SCBA equipment.  If no bottles or packs are purchased we will 
lose 69% of our firefighting ability come early 2017. MES is the 
only authorized distributor of Scott ARFF equipment in Colorado.  
This quote allows us to replace the current inventory of 
aging/expired equipment. 
 
The invoice exceeds $10,000, therefore requiring Board approval. 
 
Staff has verified the amount and the scope of work has been 
completed. 

FISCAL IMPACT: $49.999.95 (amount is available in the 2017 capital budget) 

COMMUNICATION    
STRATEGY: 

N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: MES Quote# QT 1129789 

STAFF CONTACT: Mark Papko 
Email: mpapko@gjairport.com 
Office: 970-248-8596 
 

 



Quote

Date 10/24/2017
Quote # QT1129789

Bill To
Grand Junction Reg. Airport Auth.
2828 Walker Field Drive
Grand Junction CO 81506
United States

Ship To
Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority
2842 Eagle Dr.
Grand Junction CO 81506
United States

Expires 11/23/2017

Sales Rep VanVoorhis, Ryan

PO #

Shipping Method FedEx Ground

700 W. Mississippi Ave
STE E3
Denver, CO 80223

Item
X3414022200302

200129-01

Alt. Item # Units Description
SCBA Model: Air-Pak X3 with Snap-Change
Harness: Standard Harness
Pressure: 4500
Belt Type: Standard
Escape Rope: No Escape Rope
Regulator Type: Quick Connect Hose
EBSS: Dual EBSS
Airline Option: None
Console Type: Pak-Tracker
Case: No Case
Packaging: 2 SCBA Per Box

4.5-45MIN CARB CYL&VLV NXG

QTY
9

9

Unit Sales Pri...
4,552.49

1,003.06

Amount
40,972.41

9,027.54

Subtotal
Shipping Cost (FedEx Ground)

Total

49,999.95
0.00

$49,999.95

QT1129789

This Quotation is subject to any applicable sales tax and shipping & handling charges that may apply. Tax and shipping charges are
considered estimated and will be recalculated at the time of shipment to ensure they take into account the most current local tax
information.

All returns must be processed within 30 days of receipt and require a return authorization number and are subject to a restocking fee.

Custom orders are not returnable. Effective tax rate will be applicable at the time of invoice.



Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 

Agenda Item Summary 

TOPIC:  Sunshine Rides addendum 

PURPOSE: Information ☐ Guidance ☐ Decision ☒ 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Board approve Sunshine Rides first 
addendum and authorize the Executive Director to sign on behalf 
of the airport. 

DISCUSSION: On December 1, 2015 Sunshine entered into an agreement to 
lease 97 square feet in the terminal.  The airport and Sunshine 
wish to exercise the option to extend the lease for an additional 
year. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Total annual rent of $2,939 

ATTACHMENTS: First Addendum 

STAFF CONTACT: Ty Minnick 
tminnick@gjairport.com 
970-248-8593 
 

 
 
 

mailto:tminnick@gjairport.com


FIRST ADDENDUM TO BUILDING USE AND LEASE AGREEMENT 

 
This First Addendum to Building Use and Lease Agreement (“Addendum”), between 

Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority (“GJRAA”), a body corporate and politic and 
constituting a subdivision of the State of Colorado, and Tazco, Inc., d/b/a Sunshine Taxi 
(“Tenant”), (collectively, the “Parties”) will become effective December 1, 2017. 
 

WHEREAS, GJRAA and Tenant entered into a Lease commencing on December 1, 2015, 
whereby Tenant agreed to provide transportation services in and around the Grand Junction, 
Colorado area and operate a sales counter at the Airport. 

 
WHEREAS, the parties now want to extended the Agreement for an additional one year 

term; 
 
WHEREAS, GJRAA wishes to amend section 3.1 and 3.2; 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties agree that all other provisions of the Lease remain in full force 

and effect; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the GJRAA and the Tenant agree as follows: 
 

1. The term of the Agreement will be extended for a one year term commencing 12:00 
midnight, December 1, 2017 and terminating at 11:59 p.m., November 30, 2018.  
 
2. Section 3.1 will be amended as follows: 

During the term of this Agreement, Tenant agrees to pay a monthly rental fee to 
GJRAA in the amount of Two Hundred Forty-Four and 92/100ths Dollars ($244.92), 
which may be modified upon thirty (30) days written notice by GJRRA to Tenant. 
Tenant also agrees to pay any and all other applicable fees as determined by GJRAA as 
part of its Airport Rates and Charges. 

 
3. Section 3.2 will be deleted.  This section defines “Airport Originated Revenue” and is no 
longer applicable to ground transportation providers 

 
 

Except as specifically modified or supplemented by this First Addendum, the terms and 
provisions of the Lease shall continue to be in full force and effect. 
  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease on the 1st day of December 
2017, effective as of the day and year first above written.  

 
 

 
 
 

Tenant: 
 
__________________________ By: Kelly Milan 
             Vice President 
            Tazco, Inc.   

 
 
 
 

Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 
 
____________________________ By: Executive Director 
           Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 
 
 

 



Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 

Agenda Item Summary 

TOPIC:  Ground Lease application: Plane Storage 

PURPOSE: Information ☐ Guidance ☐ Decision ☒ 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Board approve the application from Plane 
Storage and allow Plane Storage and the Executive Director to 
enter into the standard ground lease 

DISCUSSION: Plane Storage is the current tenant of the applied for location at 
2863 Aviators Way.  Total rentable square feet of 20,748 at a 
price of $0.2032 per square foot per year.  The requested lease 
will be commence on December 1, 2017 and expire on November 
30, 2037 with 30 years of additional option terms. 
 
No change to the existing structure, plane size or use of the 
hangar is requested.  Plane Storage is current in rent payable to 
the airport. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: Total annual rent of $4,216 

ATTACHMENTS: Application and location map 

STAFF CONTACT: Ty Minnick 
tminnick@gjairport.com 
970-248-8593 
 

 
 
 

  



 





Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 

Agenda Item Summary 

TOPIC:  G4S Addendum 

PURPOSE: Information ☐ Guidance ☐ Decision ☒ 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the Board authorize the Executive Director to 
sign the G4S Addendum for an additional 2 years 

DISCUSSION: G4S is the current airport security firm.  The original 2 year 
contract from March 2015 was extended to February 2018.  The 
attached addendum will expire February 2020.  The increase in 
cost is 3% per year. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Approximately $13,000 per month  

ATTACHMENTS: G4S Addendum 

STAFF CONTACT: Chance Ballegeer 
Email: cballegeer@gjairport.com 
Office: 970-248-8586 
 

 
 
  



FIRST ADDENDUM TO SECURITY SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 This first addendum to Security Services agreement (Addendum) between GRAND JUNCTION 
REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY (hereinafter referred to as “GJRAA”), a body corporate and politic and 
constituting a subdivision of the State of Colorado, and G4S Secure Solutions (USA) Inc. (hereinafter 
“Contractor”), will become effective February 28, 2018. 
 
 WHEREAS, the GJRAA and the contractor have entered into a security contract agreement 
commencing on March 24, 2015 whereby contractor agreed to provide armed security guard services at 
the Grand Junction Regional Airport pursuant to an invitation to bid process. 
 
 WHERAS, the parties agreed to extend the term for an additional one (1) year period, on 
December 20, 2016 based upon the same conditions of the initial term. 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties now want to extend the security services contract for another two (2) 
year term. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Contractor shall receive a 3% increase in compensation. 
 
 WHEREAS, the GJRAA and the contractor wish that all other provisions of the agreement remain 
in full force and effect; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the GJRAA and the operator agree as follows: 

1. The term of the agreement will be extended for a two year term commencing 12:00 
midnight, March 1, 2018 and terminating at 11:59 p.m., February 28, 2020. 
 

2. The Contractor shall receive $30.29 per labor hour from March 1, 2018 until February 
28, 2019 and $31.20 per labor hour from March 1, 2019 until February 28, 2020. 

 
Except as specifically modified or supplemented by the first addendum, the terms and provisions of the 
agreement, shall continue to be in full force and effect. 
 

[Signature page follow] 
 

  



 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this FIRST ADDENDUM to be effective on 
December 1, 2017. 

 
GRAND JUNCTION REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY    
 
 
By:    ________________________    
 
Name:    ________________________   
 
Title:    ________________________   
 
Date:    ________________________      
 
 
G4S Secure Solutions (USA), Inc. (OPERATOR) 
 
 
By:    ________________________    
 
Name:    ________________________   
 
Title:    ________________________   
 
Date:    ________________________      

 
 
 
 



Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 

Agenda Item Summary 

TOPIC: Pay Request-RFP Consulting  

PURPOSE: Information ☐ Guidance ☐ Decision ☒ 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board approve the payment of Mead & 
Hunt Invoice No. 273643. 
 

LAST ACTION: Mead and Hunt was authorized at the June Board Meeting under the 
on-call contract not to exceed $20,000 to assist with an administration 
building RFP. They were further authorized at the August Board 
Meeting to continue using this same contract to assist with layout 
options for a proposed customs office  

DISCUSSION: This invoice is the progress billing for the design build RFP 
consulting services. 
 
Staff has reviewed the invoice and concurs with the stated level of 
completion and recommends paying the invoice.  
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

$17,154.00  
 

COMMUNICATION 
STRATEGY: 

None. 

ATTACHMENTS: Mead & Hunt Invoice No. 273643 
 

STAFFCONTACT: Eric Trinklein 
etrinklein@gjairport.com 
Office: 970-248-8597 

 

 

mailto:etrinklein@gjairport.com




Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 

Agenda Item Summary 

TOPIC: Pay Request-Terminal Building Renovations  

PURPOSE: Information ☐ Guidance ☐ Decision ☒ 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board approve the payment of Mead & 
Hunt Invoice No. 273598. 
 

LAST ACTION:  

DISCUSSION: This invoice is the progress billing for the terminal building 
renovations. 
 
Staff has reviewed the invoice and concurs with the stated level of 
completion and recommends paying the invoice.  
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

$44,102.24 
 

COMMUNICATION 
STRATEGY: 

None. 

ATTACHMENTS: Mead & Hunt Invoice No. 273598 
 

STAFFCONTACT: Eric Trinklein 
etrinklein@gjairport.com 
Office: 970-248-8597 

 

 

mailto:etrinklein@gjairport.com






Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 

Agenda Item Summary 

TOPIC: Garver Pay Request for AIP 54 
 

PURPOSE: Information ☐ Guidance ☐ Decision ☒ 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board approve the payment of Garver 
Invoice No. 17081932-3, in the amount of $50,832.90. 
 

LAST ACTION:  

DISCUSSION: This invoice is the progress billing for work completed on AIP 54. 
 
Staff has reviewed the invoice and concurs with the stated level of 
completion and recommends paying the invoice.  
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

FAA - $45,749.61 (90%) 
State - $1,372.48 (2.7%) 
Local - $3,710.80 (7.3%) 

COMMUNICATION 
STRATEGY: 

None. 

ATTACHMENTS: Garver Invoice No. 17081932-3  
 

STAFFCONTACT: Eric Trinklein 
etrinklein@gjairport.com 
Office: 970-248-8597 

 

 

mailto:etrinklein@gjairport.com










OCTOBER 2017 PERFORMANCE 

 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

 

Assets – Cash and accounts receivable combined are consistent with prior year.  The increase in accounts 

receivable is a result of payments due from FAA for AIP projects 54, 55 and 56 for a total of approximately 

$1,400,000.  Project costs have been submitted for reimbursement. 

 

Liabilities – The accounts payable balance was reduced in February for the payment for approximately $520,000 

due to the FAA, along with the payments to Jviation and Armstrong. 

 

Operating Revenue – Ahead of budget and prior year, year-to-date.  Airline revenue year to date of approximately 

$1,500,000 and combined parking and rental cars of $2,200,000. Total operating revenue for 2018 to $5,278,000 

versus $5,125,000 for 2017, approximately $155,000 ahead of prior year. 

 

The increase is consistent with the increase in year-to-date enplanements. The detail air service information is 

provided in the Activity Update of the board packet. 

 

Operating Expense – The total operating expense is $300,000 ahead of budget and $125,000 ahead of prior year.  

The majority of the variance is effected by the cost savings from legal fees incurred in 2016.  Resulting in an 

operating gain of $2,064,000 year-to-date versus $1,785,000 prior year. 

 

Non-operating Expense – Due to the delay in capital projects there has been a lower than expected capital 

contributions and related expense.  



Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority
Statements of Net Position
Unaudited - subject to change

10/31/2017 12/31/2016

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8,691,245           8,302,897           
Accounts receivable & prepaid expense 1,953,592           526,874              

Total current assets 10,644,837         8,829,771           

Restricted assets
Bond project & restricted cash 12,250,535         11,437,126         
Pension deferred outflow 850,586              850,586              
Capital assets, net 58,240,193         58,240,193         
Total non-current assets 71,341,314         70,527,905         

Total assets 81,986,151         79,357,676         

Current liabilities
Accounts payable & accrued expenses 2,645,373           1,781,561           
Current portion of note payable 435,932              435,932              
Current portion of bonds payable 836,791              836,791              

Total current liabilities 3,918,096           3,054,284           

Non-current liabilities
Net pension liability 2,837,459           2,837,459           
Pension deferred inflow 74,342                74,342                
Note payable, net of current portion 678,832              678,832              
Bonds payable, net of current portion 20,832,478         20,832,478         

Total non-current liabilities 24,423,111         24,423,111         
Total liabilities 28,341,207         27,477,395         

Net position
Net investment in capital assets 35,456,160         35,456,160         
Restricted for debt service and capital assets 11,547,167         10,748,391         
Unrestricted 6,641,617           5,675,730           

Total net position 53,644,944         51,880,281         
Total liabilities and net position 81,986,151         79,357,676         



Actual Budget Actual Actual Budget Actual
10/31/2017 10/31/2017 10/31/2016 10/31/2017 10/31/2017 10/31/2016

Operating revenue
Aeronautical revenue

Passenger airline revenue
Passenger airline landing fees 447,596        408,000          427,615        44,942          44,000          43,005        
Terminal rent 988,381        985,000          984,871        98,487          98,500          98,487        
Other (boarding bridge) 75,350          57,000            64,425          7,450            5,000            3,850          

Total passenger airline revenue 1,511,327     1,450,000       1,476,911     150,880        147,500        145,342      

Non-passenger airline revenue
Non-passenger landing fees 121,739        77,300            87,584          11,444          8,100            7,405          
Cargo and hangar rentals 42,599          42,000            42,192          4,287            4,200            4,219          
Fuel tax & flowage fees 537,136        614,100          574,021        54,156          61,400          62,214        
Other (ramp parking, rapid refuel) 2,190            10,000            3,450            780               1,000            180             

Total non-passenger airline revenue 703,664        743,400          707,247        70,667          74,700          74,019        

Total aeronautical revenue 2,214,991     2,193,400       2,184,158     221,547        222,200        219,360      

Non-aeronautical revenue
Land and building leases 476,574        477,100          474,772        45,691          45,700          45,550        
Terminal - restaurant & retail 103,671        69,000            74,113          10,739          6,900            10,852        
Terminal - other 212,959        159,000          202,473        21,296          15,900          21,374        
Rental cars 1,014,532     1,007,700       967,535        115,324        108,700        108,083      
Parking and ground transportation 1,183,429     1,146,800       1,144,926     125,717        116,000        124,793      
Other (security fee, overtime fee, etc) 71,996          62,000            76,937          6,606            6,200            18,594        

Total non-aeronautical revenue 3,063,161     2,921,600       2,940,756     325,373        299,400        329,246      

Total operating revenues 5,278,152     5,115,000       5,124,914     546,920        521,600        548,607      

Operating expenses
Personnel compensation and benefits 1,635,595     1,798,364       1,499,302     154,877        163,139        142,088      
Communications and utilities 247,377        267,088          242,169        22,516          29,199          22,542        
Supplies and materials 352,497        375,478          336,640        32,074          41,652          30,312        
Contract services 462,471        534,285          770,513        57,014          54,191          47,846        
Repairs & maintenance 221,989        246,527          345,634        44,163          38,453          51,596        
Insurance 77,957          77,480            75,762          7,993            7,898            7,598          
Other (travel, marketing, air service, etc) 215,804        214,547          69,888          23,218          18,243          9,685          

Total operating expenses 3,213,690     3,513,769       3,339,908     341,856        352,775        311,667      

Operating gain (loss) 2,064,462     1,601,231       1,785,006     205,064        168,825        236,940      

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Passenger facility charges 743,303        746,000          741,367        88,443          80,000          36,947        
Interest income 79,677          16,000            23,133          10,137          1,600            2,424          
Interest expense (743,349)       (743,348)         (586,480)       (73,918)         (73,918)         (58,239)       
Customer facility charges 587,439        476,000          579,183        77,000          51,000          76,604        
Capital contributions 3,309,137     6,361,572       1,333,905     1,438,387     4,496,400     28,065        
Capital expenditure (3,798,117)    (7,259,945)      (1,780,127)    (1,689,283)    (4,996,001)    (13,045)       
Debt principal payments (325,712)       (325,712)         (316,112)       -                -                -              
Other (Legal Settlement) (151,910)       -                  -                -                -                -              

Total non-operating revenue (299,532)       (729,433)         (5,131)           (149,235)       (440,919)       72,757        

Excess of revenues over (under) expense 1,764,930     871,798          1,779,875     55,829          (272,094)       309,697      

YEAR TO DATE MONTH

Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority
Statements of Changes in Net Position

Unaudited - subject to change



GRAND JUNCTION REGIONAL AIRPORT ACTIVITY REPORT

Report Date:
PY Comparison Date:

. October, 2017

PERCENT PERCENT

2016 2017 CHANGE 2016 2017 CHANGE

9,334                   10,061     7.79% 81,746        87,943        7.58%

1,341                   1,086       -19.02% 14,947        14,641        -2.05%

8,087                   7,116       -12.01% 58,971        56,550        -4.11%

3,539                   3,705       4.69% 33,210        36,131        8.80%

476                      543          14.08% 5,882          6,183          5.12%

-                       -           N/A -              864             N/A

-                       -           N/A -              80               N/A

22,777            22,511  -1.17% 195,362  202,490  3.65%

27,722            25,948  -6.40% 255,459  254,934  -0.21%

PASSENGER DEPLANEMENTS: 2016 2017 CHANGE 2016 2017 CHANGE

8,778                   9,316       6.13% 80,809        86,303        6.80%

1,323                   1,237       -6.50% 14,798        14,419        -2.56%

5,217                   6,739       29.17% 38,119        58,944        54.63%

3,344                   3,746       12.02% 33,241        36,281        9.15%

-                       594          N/A -              5,657          N/A

-                       -           N/A -              718             N/A

-                       -           N/A -              80               N/A

18,662            21,632  15.91% 167,173  202,402  21.07%

**2016 Deplanement data is incomplete**

41,439            44,143  6.53% 362,535  404,892  11.68%

CHANGE IN

PERCENT

77.98% 91.23% 13.25% 74.56% 83.67% 12.21%

73.44% 73.18% -0.26% 82.61% 80.60% -2.44%

92.21% 93.41% 1.20% 75.84% 77.93% 2.76%

80.43% 83.26% 2.83% 80.61% 79.42% -1.48%

62.96% 39.69% -23.27% 67.05% 45.48% -32.18%

82.16% 86.75% 4.59% 76.47% 79.43% 3.86%

GRAND JUNCTION REGIONAL AIRPORT ACTIVITY REPORT

October 31, 2017

PERCENT PERCENT

AIR FREIGHT ON (LBS): 2016 2017 CHANGE 2016 2017 CHANGE

American -                       360          N/A 9,148          7,719          -15.62%

FedEx 245,746               247,574   0.74% 2,707,256   2,852,258   5.36%

KEY LIME AIR 29,749                 30,753     3.37% -              355,071      N/A

United -                       1,781       N/A -              9,493          N/A

Delta -                       316          N/A -              2,069          N/A

TOTAL FREIGHT ON 275,495               280,784   1.92% 3,016,152   3,226,610   6.98%

AIR FREIGHT OFF (LBS):

American 278                      576          107.19% 4,422          7,466          68.84%

FedEx 431,126               352,736   -18.18% 5,017,878   4,700,481   -6.33%

KEY LIME AIR 64,685                 63,930     -1.17% -              668,780      N/A

United -                       837          N/A -              3,587          N/A

Delta -                       563          N/A -              3,359          N/A

TOTAL FREIGHT OFF 496,089               418,642   -15.61% 5,625,296   5,383,673   -4.30%

TOTAL AIR FREIGHT 771,584               699,426   -9.35% 8,641,448   8,610,283   -0.36%

CURRENT MONTH YEAR-TO-DATE

YEAR-TO-DATECURRENT MONTH

YEAR-TO-DATECURRENT MONTH

October 31, 2017
October 31, 2016

AMERICAN (TOTAL)

ALLEGIANT

DENVER AIR CONNECTION (TOTAL)

SWIFT AIR (TOTAL)

SunCountry Charter

TOTAL ENPLANEMENTS

TOTAL SEAT CAPACITY

PASSENGER ENPLANEMENTS:

AMERICAN (TOTAL)

ALLEGIANT (TOTAL)

UNITED (TOTAL)

DELTA (TOTAL)

GJT TOTAL

LOAD FACTOR:(OUTBOUND ONLY)

TOTAL DEPLANEMENTS

TOTAL PASSENGERS

DENVER AIR CONNECTION (TOTAL)

AMERICAN (TOTAL)

ALLEGIANT

UNITED (TOTAL)

DELTA (TOTAL)

UNITED (TOTAL)

DELTA (TOTAL)

DENVER AIR CONNECTION (TOTAL)

SWIFT AIR (TOTAL)

SunCountry Charter



Enplanements and Activity Report 

2016 2017 Passengers Percent
October 22,777          22,511          (266) -1.2%
YTD 195,362 202,490 7,128 3.6%

Variance

-6.0%
-4.0%
-2.0%
0.0%
2.0%
4.0%
6.0%
8.0%

10.0%
12.0%
14.0%
16.0%

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Enplanements
Current Year vs Prior Year Variance

Month Year

 13,000
 14,000
 15,000
 16,000
 17,000
 18,000
 19,000
 20,000
 21,000
 22,000
 23,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

En
p

la
ne

m
en

ts

Enplanements 
Current Year vs 5 Year Average

2017 Actual 5 Year Average

5 Year Avg 2017 Passengers Percent
October 20,128 22,511 2,383 11.8%
YTD 186,374 202,490 16,116 8.6%

Variance


cost

						2007		2008		2009		2010		2011		2012		2013		2014		2015

		January		Enplanements		13,545		14,656		16,033		15,727		16,455		16,159		16,967		18,084		15,372		495.8709677419		16,297

				Airline cost		72,844		79,314		109,687		113,732		126,836		132,856		152,062		148,120		142,225

				Cost per enplanement		$   5.38		$   5.41		$   6.84		$   7.23		$   7.71		$   8.22		$   8.96		$   8.19		$   9.25



		February		Enplanements		12,059		13,149		14,953		14,432		14,126		15,409		14,628		16,015		13,904		496.5714285714		14,673

				Airline cost		72,294		71,106		106,377		111,832		125,055		129,168		138,156		142,714

				Cost per enplanement		$   6.00		$   5.41		$   7.11		$   7.75		$   8.85		$   8.38		$   9.44		$   8.91



		March		Enplanements		13,593		14,166		18,692		17,401		17,739		18,054		16,871		18,073

				Airline cost		75,259		75,297		124,592		115,807		130,132		132,121		137,740		145,538

				Cost per enplanement		$   5.54		$   5.32		$   6.67		$   6.66		$   7.34		$   7.32		$   8.16		$   8.05



		April		Enplanements		13,517		14,715		17,861		17,667		17,298		17,896		17,258		17,145

				Airline cost		72,883		78,108		120,222		120,436		126,120		128,393		138,058		140,938

				Cost per enplanement		$   5.39		$   5.31		$   6.73		$   6.82		$   7.29		$   7.17		$   8.00		$   8.22



		May		Enplanements		15,604		21,067		21,631		19,310		20,700		19,942		19,845		19,872

				Airline cost		81,040		81,319		121,199		123,334		130,717		132,076		138,456		145,066

				Cost per enplanement		$   5.19		$   3.86		$   5.60		$   6.39		$   6.31		$   6.62		$   6.98		$   7.30



		June		Enplanements		15,062		19,449		22,379		19,023		20,493		20,153		19,202		19,142

				Airline cost		76,122		74,910		121,360		124,331		129,518		136,913		143,846		143,583

				Cost per enplanement		$   5.05		$   3.85		$   5.42		$   6.54		$   6.32		$   6.79		$   7.49		$   7.50



		July		Enplanements		15,141		20,533		24,069		19,363		20,981		20,947		20,075		19,613

				Airline cost		72,207		82,724		123,757		122,211		131,028		134,970		146,679		148,882

				Cost per enplanement		$   4.77		$   4.03		$   5.14		$   6.31		$   6.25		$   6.44		$   7.31		$   7.59



		August		Enplanements		14,661		20,001		23,284		20,268		19,546		19,813		18,259		18,643

				Airline cost		81,266		108,991		127,148		120,996		129,964		131,597		144,458		147,834

				Cost per enplanement		$   5.54		$   5.45		$   5.46		$   5.97		$   6.65		$   6.64		$   7.91		$   7.93



		September		Enplanements		14,406		19,288		19,788		20,718		19,552		18,619		18,856		19,247

				Airline cost		75,962		105,217		114,110		119,701		124,279		127,437		142,571		139,763

				Cost per enplanement		$   5.27		$   5.46		$   5.77		$   5.78		$   6.36		$   6.84		$   7.56		$   7.26



		October		Enplanements		14,813		20,460		18,693		20,756		19,265		19,101		19,787		19,148

				Airline cost		72,677		107,746		112,156		124,927		125,561		127,270		144,431		140,077

				Cost per enplanement		$   4.91		$   5.27		$   6.00		$   6.02		$   6.52		$   6.66		$   7.30		$   7.32



		November		Enplanements		14,008		17,305		16,719		18,386		17,585		17,025		17,104		16,768

				Airline cost		71,141		103,471		110,091		122,934		119,792		126,228		138,673		136,598

				Cost per enplanement		$   5.08		$   5.98		$   6.58		$   6.69		$   6.81		$   7.41		$   8.11		$   8.15



		December		Enplanements		14,427		19,843		17,514		18,775		18,356		16,525		18,832		17,502

				Airline cost		76,823		115,730		112,449		122,682		126,946		130,674		142,319		156,452

				Cost per enplanement		$   5.32		$   5.83		$   6.42		$   6.53		$   6.92		$   7.91		$   7.56		$   8.94



		TOTAL		Enplanements		170,836		214,632		231,616		221,826		222,096		219,643		217,684		219,252						220,964

				Airline cost		900,520		1,083,932		1,403,149		1,442,923		1,525,947		1,569,702		1,707,449		1,735,564

				Cost per enplanement		$   5.27		$   5.05		$   6.06		$   6.50		$   6.87		$   7.15		$   7.84		$   7.92



						YEAR TO DATE

						12/31/07		12/31/08		12/31/09		12/31/10		12/31/11		12/31/12		12/31/13		12/31/14		8/31/15



		1-41-100		LANDING FEES - SKYWEST (DL)		59,349		51,358		63,835		65,271		56,651		54,216		60,560		53,594		- 0

		1-41-105		LANDING FEES - SKYWEST (UA)		43,925		55,967		60,968		146,663		189,845		170,786		185,015		175,640		- 0

		1-41-110		LANDING FEES - MESA AIRLINES		83,898		87,649		125,966		41,159		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-41-135		LANDING FEES - MISC. CARRIERS		19,202		23,188		14,532		22,050		11,656		9,849		21,843		17,032		- 0

		1-41-145		LANDING FEES - KEY LIME AIR		47,449		47,235		38,213		28,387		33,320		34,238		31,145		32,780		- 0

		1-41-155		LANDING FEES - ALLEGIANT		15,009		15,045		37,170		38,286		38,954		38,892		31,694		29,644		- 0

		1-41-160		LANDING FEES - AMERICAN EAGLE		- 0		- 0		- 0		30,268		55,738		54,486		63,516		62,471		- 0

		1-41-165		LANDING FEES-US AIRWAYS		- 0		- 0		- 0		32,113		55,780		73,683		85,385		77,997		- 0

		1-42-135		TERMINAL USAGE - OTHER AIRLINE		682		750		770		777		784		807		828		838		- 0

		1-42-200		TERMINAL RENT - MESA AIRLINES		38,354		38,354		51,220		10,681		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-205		TERMINAL RENT - GREAT LAKES		21,243		7,081		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-210		TERMINAL RENT - SKYWEST (DL)		8,598		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-215		TERMINAL RENT - SKYWEST (UA)		68,564		68,564		76,442		84,320		88,858		91,968		95,205		96,157		- 0

		1-42-220		TERMINAL RENT - THUNDER MTN		10,349		10,349		4,312		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-225		TERMINAL RENT - ALLEGIANT AIR		13,931		13,931		17,029		19,456		19,796		20,489		21,210		21,422		- 0

		1-42-230		TERMINAL RENT - AMERICAN EAGLE		- 0		- 0		- 0		31,351		45,302		46,629		53,591		48,753		- 0

		1-42-250		TERM. RENT-DENVER AIR		- 0		- 0		7,067		15,743		16,590		17,171		17,775		17,953		- 0

		1-42-265		TERMINAL RENT - US AIRWAYS		- 0		- 0		- 0		35,923		30,688		31,762		32,880		33,209		- 0

		1-42-305		SHARED SPACE - SKYWEST (DL)		75,043		67,742		92,415		98,206		86,747		85,323		86,893		87,876		- 0

		1-42-315		SHARED SPACE - SKYWEST (UA)		67,818		75,684		77,145		186,955		252,882		249,658		250,925		227,207		- 0

		1-42-320		SHARED SPACE - MISC. CARRIERS		3,284		3,258		4,465		4,358		1,718		893		4,814		1,156		- 0

		1-42-325		SHARED SPACE - MESA AIRLINES		106,425		117,636		176,640		70,879		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-330		SHARED SPACE - ALLEGIANT		22,636		25,097		68,724		73,156		71,749		66,377		59,304		53,559		- 0

		1-42-335		SHARED SPACE-AMERICAN EAGLE		- 0		44,962		74,932		79,307		91,549		90,639		100,587		95,140		- 0

		1-42-360		SHARED SPACE - DENVER AIR CONN		- 0		- 0		680		2,034		3,290		3,555		4,511		4,462		- 0

		1-42-365		SHARED SPACE-US AIRWAYS		- 0		- 0		- 0		47,492		89,836		118,181		125,922		116,590		- 0

		1-42-441		AIRLINE TICKETING AREA-SKYW/DL		- 0		6,941		18,013		19,001		16,684		16,400		16,681		15,571		- 0

		1-42-442		AIRLINE TICKETING AREA-SKYW/UA		- 0		8,099		15,026		36,225		48,311		47,974		48,163		44,613		- 0

		1-42-443		AIRLINE TICKETING AREA-MESA/US		- 0		4,927		12,120		5,262		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-444		AIRLINE TICKETING AREA-MESA/UA		- 0		6,829		22,309		8,439		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-445		AIRLINE TICKETING AREA-ALLEGNT		- 0		2,318		11,868		14,343		13,797		13,067		11,386		10,241		- 0

		1-42-446		AIRLINE TICKETING AREA-AMEAGLE		- 0		6,023		16,130		15,350		17,609		17,420		19,308		18,178		- 0

		1-42-447		AIRLINE TICKETING AREA-LYNX AV		- 0		6,662		11,679		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-448		AIRLINE TICKETING AREA-MISC		- 0		248		869		833		330		172		513		221		- 0

		1-42-449		AIRLINE TICKETING AREA-DAC		- 0		- 0		545		1,443		2,638		2,850		3,615		3,577		- 0

		1-42-450		AIRLINE TICKETING AREA-US AIR		- 0		- 0		- 0		9,192		17,601		23,168		24,182		22,258		- 0

		1-44-100		SECURITY COSTS - GREAT LAKES		11,997		4,345		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-44-105		SECURITY COSTS - LYNX AVIATION		- 0		17,891		18,003		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-44-200		SECURITY COSTS - SKYWEST (DL)		39,003		27,799		27,796		29,434		24,514		25,661		34,670		28,816		- 0

		1-44-205		SECURITY COSTS - AIR WISCONSIN		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-44-300		SECURITY COSTS - SKYWEST (UA)		35,269		30,690		23,190		56,076		70,978		75,092		100,161		95,352		- 0

		1-44-500		SECURITY COSTS - MESA AIRLINES		56,007		48,595		53,155		21,258		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-44-600		SECURITY COSTS - ALLEGIANT AIR		11,772		10,571		18,298		21,930		20,277		22,056		23,657		21,100		- 0

		1-44-650		SECURITY COSTS-AMERICAN EAGLE		- 0		16,931		24,881		23,780		25,115		27,261		40,149		37,490		- 0

		1-44-655		SECURITY COSTS-US AIRWAYS		- 0		- 0		- 0		14,232		25,874		38,709		50,292		45,954		- 0

		1-44-700		SECURITY COSTS - MISC. CARRIER		1,774		1,429		1,343		1,292		486		269		1,070		455		- 0

		1-47-120		Rent - airline shared space		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		84,529		642,901

		1-47-110		Rent - airline exclusive space		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		144,996

		1-47-510		Landing fees - passenger		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		53,728		323,374

		1-41-125		LANDING FEES - GREAT LAKES		15,870		4,305		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-41-140		LANDING FEES - LYNX AVIATION		- 0		49,885		54,130		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-260		TERMINAL RENT - LYNX AVIATION		- 0		19,120		21,510		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-300		SHARED SPACE - GREAT LAKES		23,069		8,348		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-350		SHARED SPACE - AIR WISCONSIN		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-355		SHARED SPACE - LYNX AVIATION		- 0		48,128		59,757		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



						900,520		1,083,932		1,403,149		1,442,923		1,525,947		1,569,702		1,707,449		1,735,564		1,111,271











enplanement

				2007		2008		2009		2010		2011		2012		2013		2014		2015

		January		13,545		14,656		16,033		15,727		16,455		16,159		16,967		18,084		15,372

		February		12,059		13,149		14,953		14,432		14,126		15,409		14,628		16,015		13,904

		March		13,593		14,166		18,692		17,401		17,739		18,054		16,871		18,073		16,629

		April		13,517		14,715		17,861		17,667		17,298		17,896		17,258		17,145		16,189

		May		15,604		21,067		21,631		19,310		20,700		19,942		19,845		19,872		19,603

		June		15,062		19,449		22,379		19,023		20,493		20,153		19,202		19,142		20,381

		July		15,141		20,533		24,069		19,363		20,981		20,947		20,075		19,613

		August		14,661		20,001		23,284		20,268		19,546		19,813		18,259		18,643

		September		14,406		19,288		19,788		20,718		19,552		18,619		18,856		19,247

		October		14,813		20,460		18,693		20,756		19,265		19,101		19,787		19,148								0.029										40000

		November		14,008		17,305		16,719		18,386		17,585		17,025		17,104		16,768																		3060

		December		14,427		19,843		17,514		18,775		18,356		16,525		18,832		17,502								72		30000		72.5		($454.47)

		TOTAL		170,836		214,632		231,616		221,826		222,096		219,643		217,684		219,252		102,078







Current vs Prior

				2007		2008		2009		2010		2011		2012		2013		2014		2015		2016		2017				month		year

		January		13,545		14,656		16,033		15,727		16,455		16,159		16,967		18,084		15,372		16,197		17,779				9.8%		9.8%

		February		12,059		13,149		14,953		14,432		14,126		15,409		14,628		16,015		13,904		15,965		16,563				3.7%

																		34,099		29,276		32,162		34,342						6.8%



		March		13,593		14,166		18,692		17,401		17,739		18,054		16,871		18,073		16,647		18,533		19,540				5.4%								16953		18003

				39,197		41,971		49,678		47,560		48,320		49,622		48,466		52,172		45,923		50,695		53,882						6.3%



		April		13,517		14,715		17,861		17,667		17,298		17,896		17,258		17,145		16,189		17,488		19,985				14.3%								1,299

																		69,317		62,112		68,183		73,867						8.3%						6,071



		May		15,604		21,067		21,631		19,310		20,700		19,942		19,845		19,872		19,603		19,795		21,632				9.3%

																		89,189		81,715		87,978		95,499						8.5%

																																						19057

		June		15,062		19,449		22,379		19,023		20,493		20,153		19,202		19,142		20,381		21,360		22,156				3.7%						979

																		108,331		102,096		109,338		117,655						7.6%				7,242



		July		15,141		20,533		24,069		19,363		20,981		20,947		20,075		19,613		21,712		21,497		21,762				1.2%

																		127,944		123,808		130,835		139,417						6.6%



		August		14,661		20,001		23,284		20,268		19,546		19,813		18,259		18,643		20,428		20,335		19,860				-2.3%

																		146,587		144,236		151,170		159,277						5.4%

																																						30.30		5,721.00		173,346.30		0.07		11,648.87		970.74		90.94

		September		14,406		19,288		19,788		20,718		19,552		18,619		18,856		19,247		19,624		21,415		20,702				-3.3%				9.1%						30.30		17,721.00		536,946.30		0.07		37,425.16		3,118.76		292.17

																		165,834		163,860		172,585		179,979						4.3%								30.30		4,587.00		138,986.10		0.07		9,339.87		778.32		72.91

																																						30.30		862.00						26,118.60		2,176.55		204.05

		October		14,813		20,460		18,693		20,756		19,265		19,101		19,787		19,148		19,825		22,777		22,511				-1.2%

																		184,982		183,685		195,362		202,490						3.6%								27.27		5,721.00		156,011.67		0.07		10,483.98		873.67		79.42

																																						27.27		17,721.00		483,251.67		0.07		33,682.64		2,806.89		255.17

		November		14,008		17,305		16,719		18,386		17,585		17,025		17,104		16,768		17,507		18,954						-100.0%										27.27		4,587.00		125,087.49		0.07		8,405.88		700.49		63.68

																		201,750		201,192		214,316		202,490						-5.5%								30.30		707.00						21,422.10		1,785.18		162.29



		December		14,427		19,843		17,514		18,775		18,356		16,525		18,832		17,502		17,756		18,356						-100.0%

		TOTAL		170,836		214,632		231,616		221,826		222,096		219,643		217,684		219,252		218,948		232,672		202,490						-13.0%

























				Month		Year																						Month		Year

		Jan		9.8%		9.8%																						9.8%		9.8%

		Feb		3.7%		6.8%																						3.7%		6.8%

		Mar		5.4%		6.3%																						5.4%		6.3%

		Apr		14.3%		8.3%																						14.3%		8.3%

		May		9.3%		8.5%																						9.3%		8.5%

		Jun		3.7%		7.6%																						3.7%		7.6%

		Jul		1.2%		6.6%																						1.2%		6.6%

		Aug		-2.3%		5.4%																						-2.3%		5.4%

		Sep		-3.3%		4.3%																						-3.3%		4.3%

		Oct		-1.2%		3.6%																						-1.2%		3.6%

		Nov																										-100.0%		-5.5%

		Dec																										-100.0%		-13.0%









																		Variance

														2016		2017		Passengers		Percent

												October		22,777		22,511		(266)		-1.2%

												YTD		195,362		202,490		7,128		3.6%

				2016		2017

		Jan		16,197		17,779

		Feb		15,965		16,563

		Mar		18,533		19,540

		Apr		17,488		19,985

		May		19,795		21,632

		Jun		21,360		22,156

		Jul		21,497		21,762

		Aug		20,335		19,860

		Sep		21,415		20,702

		Oct		22,777		22,511

		Nov		18,954

		Dec		18,356



Enplanements

Current Year vs Prior Year Variance



Month	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	9.7672408470704353E-2	3.7456937049796357E-2	5.433550963146816E-2	0.14278362305580972	9.2801212427380708E-2	3.7265917602996357E-2	1.2327301483928021E-2	-2.3358741086796142E-2	-3.329441979920611E-2	-1.1678447556745852E-2	Year	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	9.7672408470704353E-2	6.7781854362291005E-2	6.2866160370845359E-2	8.3363888359268445E-2	8.5487280911136887E-2	7.6066875194351402E-2	6.5594068865364674E-2	5.3628365416418688E-2	4.2842657241359383E-2	3.6486112959531525E-2	







Enplanements 

2016 vs 2017



2016	

Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	16197	15965	18533	17488	19795	21360	21497	20335	21415	22777	18954	18356	2017	

Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	17779	16563	19540	19985	21632	22156	21762	19860	20702	22511	









Average

				Includes Revenue only																		Include Rev and Non-Rev

				2007		2008		2009		2010		2011		2012		2013		2014		2015		2016		2017						5 year average

		January		13,545		14,656		16,033		15,727		16,455		16,159		16,967		18,084		15,372		16,197		17,779						16,556		7.4%

		February		12,059		13,149		14,953		14,432		14,126		15,409		14,628		16,015		13,904		15,965		16,563						15,184		9.1%

		March		13,593		14,166		18,692		17,401		17,739		18,054		16,871		18,073		16,647		18,533		19,540						17,636		10.8%

		April		13,517		14,715		17,861		17,667		17,298		17,896		17,258		17,145		16,189		17,488		19,985						17,195		16.2%		(293)

		May		15,604		21,067		21,631		19,310		20,700		19,942		19,845		19,872		19,603		19,795		21,632						19,811		9.2%

		June		15,062		19,449		22,379		19,023		20,493		20,153		19,202		19,142		20,381		21,360		22,156						20,048		10.5%		(1,312)

		July		15,141		20,533		24,069		19,363		20,981		20,947		20,075		19,613		21,712		21,497		21,762						20,769		4.8%

		August		14,661		20,001		23,284		20,268		19,546		19,813		18,259		18,643		20,428		20,335		19,860						19,496		1.9%

		September		14,406		19,288		19,788		20,718		19,552		18,619		18,856		19,247		19,624		21,415		20,702						19,552		5.9%						166,246		172,585		3.81%

		October		14,813		20,460		18,693		20,756		19,265		19,101		19,787		19,148		19,825		22,777		22,511						20,128		11.8%

		November		14,008		17,305		16,719		18,386		17,585		17,025		17,104		16,768		17,507		18,954		- 0						17,472		-100.0%

		December		14,427		19,843		17,514		18,775		18,356		16,525		18,832		17,502		17,756		18,356		- 0						17,794		-100.0%

		TOTAL		170,836		214,632		231,616		221,826		222,096		219,643		217,684		219,252		218,948		232,672		202,490						221,640



				5 Year Average		2017 Actual

		Jan		16,556		17,779		15,953

		Feb		15,184		16,563		14,346

		Mar		17,636		19,540		16,824

		Apr		17,195		19,985		16,670

		May		19,811		21,632		19,746

		Jun		20,048		22,156		19,363

		Jul		20,769		21,762		20,090

		Aug		19,496		19,860		19,309

		Sep		19,552		20,702		18,809

		Oct		20,128		22,511		19,003

		Nov		17,472				16,863

		Dec		17,794				17,722

				221,640		202,490		214,698

														Variance

										5 Year Avg		2017		Passengers		Percent

								October		20,128		22,511		2,383		11.8%

								YTD		186,374		202,490		16,116		8.6%



Enplanements 

Current Year vs 5 Year Average



2017 Actual	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	17779	16563	19540	19985	21632	22156	21762	19860	20702	5 Year Average	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	16555.8	15184.2	17635.599999999999	17195.2	19811.400000000001	20047.599999999999	20768.8	19495.599999999999	19552.2	20127.599999999999	17471.599999999999	17794.2	

Enplanements











Sheet2

						lbs		landings		enplane														landings		enplane

		Delta/Skywest		CRJ		47,000		85		3,150				50		4,250		74%						61		2,267



		United/Skywest		CR6		67,000		4						70		280

				CRJ		47,000		51						50		2,550

				ER7		74,957		1						70		70

										2,390						2,900		82%



		United/Express Jet		XRJ		44,092		4		170				50		200		85%



		United/Trans State		ERJ145L		42,549		6						50		300

				ERJ145X		44,092		49						50		2,450

										2,235						2,750		81%						145		6,336



		Allegiant		MD83		139,500		9		1,208				160		1,440		84%						10		1,207



		American		E145		43,651		82						50		4,100

				CRJ7		67,000		1						70		70

				CRJ2		47,000		90						50		4,500

										6,907						8,670		80%						151		5,930



		Key Lime								750

		Sun Country								74

														4,795		5850		0.8196581197






cost

						2007		2008		2009		2010		2011		2012		2013		2014		2015

		January		Enplanements		13,545		14,656		16,033		15,727		16,455		16,159		16,967		18,084		15,372		495.8709677419		16,297

				Airline cost		72,844		79,314		109,687		113,732		126,836		132,856		152,062		148,120		142,225

				Cost per enplanement		$   5.38		$   5.41		$   6.84		$   7.23		$   7.71		$   8.22		$   8.96		$   8.19		$   9.25



		February		Enplanements		12,059		13,149		14,953		14,432		14,126		15,409		14,628		16,015		13,904		496.5714285714		14,673

				Airline cost		72,294		71,106		106,377		111,832		125,055		129,168		138,156		142,714

				Cost per enplanement		$   6.00		$   5.41		$   7.11		$   7.75		$   8.85		$   8.38		$   9.44		$   8.91



		March		Enplanements		13,593		14,166		18,692		17,401		17,739		18,054		16,871		18,073

				Airline cost		75,259		75,297		124,592		115,807		130,132		132,121		137,740		145,538

				Cost per enplanement		$   5.54		$   5.32		$   6.67		$   6.66		$   7.34		$   7.32		$   8.16		$   8.05



		April		Enplanements		13,517		14,715		17,861		17,667		17,298		17,896		17,258		17,145

				Airline cost		72,883		78,108		120,222		120,436		126,120		128,393		138,058		140,938

				Cost per enplanement		$   5.39		$   5.31		$   6.73		$   6.82		$   7.29		$   7.17		$   8.00		$   8.22



		May		Enplanements		15,604		21,067		21,631		19,310		20,700		19,942		19,845		19,872

				Airline cost		81,040		81,319		121,199		123,334		130,717		132,076		138,456		145,066

				Cost per enplanement		$   5.19		$   3.86		$   5.60		$   6.39		$   6.31		$   6.62		$   6.98		$   7.30



		June		Enplanements		15,062		19,449		22,379		19,023		20,493		20,153		19,202		19,142

				Airline cost		76,122		74,910		121,360		124,331		129,518		136,913		143,846		143,583

				Cost per enplanement		$   5.05		$   3.85		$   5.42		$   6.54		$   6.32		$   6.79		$   7.49		$   7.50



		July		Enplanements		15,141		20,533		24,069		19,363		20,981		20,947		20,075		19,613

				Airline cost		72,207		82,724		123,757		122,211		131,028		134,970		146,679		148,882

				Cost per enplanement		$   4.77		$   4.03		$   5.14		$   6.31		$   6.25		$   6.44		$   7.31		$   7.59



		August		Enplanements		14,661		20,001		23,284		20,268		19,546		19,813		18,259		18,643

				Airline cost		81,266		108,991		127,148		120,996		129,964		131,597		144,458		147,834

				Cost per enplanement		$   5.54		$   5.45		$   5.46		$   5.97		$   6.65		$   6.64		$   7.91		$   7.93



		September		Enplanements		14,406		19,288		19,788		20,718		19,552		18,619		18,856		19,247

				Airline cost		75,962		105,217		114,110		119,701		124,279		127,437		142,571		139,763

				Cost per enplanement		$   5.27		$   5.46		$   5.77		$   5.78		$   6.36		$   6.84		$   7.56		$   7.26



		October		Enplanements		14,813		20,460		18,693		20,756		19,265		19,101		19,787		19,148

				Airline cost		72,677		107,746		112,156		124,927		125,561		127,270		144,431		140,077

				Cost per enplanement		$   4.91		$   5.27		$   6.00		$   6.02		$   6.52		$   6.66		$   7.30		$   7.32



		November		Enplanements		14,008		17,305		16,719		18,386		17,585		17,025		17,104		16,768

				Airline cost		71,141		103,471		110,091		122,934		119,792		126,228		138,673		136,598

				Cost per enplanement		$   5.08		$   5.98		$   6.58		$   6.69		$   6.81		$   7.41		$   8.11		$   8.15



		December		Enplanements		14,427		19,843		17,514		18,775		18,356		16,525		18,832		17,502

				Airline cost		76,823		115,730		112,449		122,682		126,946		130,674		142,319		156,452

				Cost per enplanement		$   5.32		$   5.83		$   6.42		$   6.53		$   6.92		$   7.91		$   7.56		$   8.94



		TOTAL		Enplanements		170,836		214,632		231,616		221,826		222,096		219,643		217,684		219,252						220,964

				Airline cost		900,520		1,083,932		1,403,149		1,442,923		1,525,947		1,569,702		1,707,449		1,735,564

				Cost per enplanement		$   5.27		$   5.05		$   6.06		$   6.50		$   6.87		$   7.15		$   7.84		$   7.92



						YEAR TO DATE

						12/31/07		12/31/08		12/31/09		12/31/10		12/31/11		12/31/12		12/31/13		12/31/14		8/31/15



		1-41-100		LANDING FEES - SKYWEST (DL)		59,349		51,358		63,835		65,271		56,651		54,216		60,560		53,594		- 0

		1-41-105		LANDING FEES - SKYWEST (UA)		43,925		55,967		60,968		146,663		189,845		170,786		185,015		175,640		- 0

		1-41-110		LANDING FEES - MESA AIRLINES		83,898		87,649		125,966		41,159		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-41-135		LANDING FEES - MISC. CARRIERS		19,202		23,188		14,532		22,050		11,656		9,849		21,843		17,032		- 0

		1-41-145		LANDING FEES - KEY LIME AIR		47,449		47,235		38,213		28,387		33,320		34,238		31,145		32,780		- 0

		1-41-155		LANDING FEES - ALLEGIANT		15,009		15,045		37,170		38,286		38,954		38,892		31,694		29,644		- 0

		1-41-160		LANDING FEES - AMERICAN EAGLE		- 0		- 0		- 0		30,268		55,738		54,486		63,516		62,471		- 0

		1-41-165		LANDING FEES-US AIRWAYS		- 0		- 0		- 0		32,113		55,780		73,683		85,385		77,997		- 0

		1-42-135		TERMINAL USAGE - OTHER AIRLINE		682		750		770		777		784		807		828		838		- 0

		1-42-200		TERMINAL RENT - MESA AIRLINES		38,354		38,354		51,220		10,681		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-205		TERMINAL RENT - GREAT LAKES		21,243		7,081		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-210		TERMINAL RENT - SKYWEST (DL)		8,598		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-215		TERMINAL RENT - SKYWEST (UA)		68,564		68,564		76,442		84,320		88,858		91,968		95,205		96,157		- 0

		1-42-220		TERMINAL RENT - THUNDER MTN		10,349		10,349		4,312		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-225		TERMINAL RENT - ALLEGIANT AIR		13,931		13,931		17,029		19,456		19,796		20,489		21,210		21,422		- 0

		1-42-230		TERMINAL RENT - AMERICAN EAGLE		- 0		- 0		- 0		31,351		45,302		46,629		53,591		48,753		- 0

		1-42-250		TERM. RENT-DENVER AIR		- 0		- 0		7,067		15,743		16,590		17,171		17,775		17,953		- 0

		1-42-265		TERMINAL RENT - US AIRWAYS		- 0		- 0		- 0		35,923		30,688		31,762		32,880		33,209		- 0

		1-42-305		SHARED SPACE - SKYWEST (DL)		75,043		67,742		92,415		98,206		86,747		85,323		86,893		87,876		- 0

		1-42-315		SHARED SPACE - SKYWEST (UA)		67,818		75,684		77,145		186,955		252,882		249,658		250,925		227,207		- 0

		1-42-320		SHARED SPACE - MISC. CARRIERS		3,284		3,258		4,465		4,358		1,718		893		4,814		1,156		- 0

		1-42-325		SHARED SPACE - MESA AIRLINES		106,425		117,636		176,640		70,879		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-330		SHARED SPACE - ALLEGIANT		22,636		25,097		68,724		73,156		71,749		66,377		59,304		53,559		- 0

		1-42-335		SHARED SPACE-AMERICAN EAGLE		- 0		44,962		74,932		79,307		91,549		90,639		100,587		95,140		- 0

		1-42-360		SHARED SPACE - DENVER AIR CONN		- 0		- 0		680		2,034		3,290		3,555		4,511		4,462		- 0

		1-42-365		SHARED SPACE-US AIRWAYS		- 0		- 0		- 0		47,492		89,836		118,181		125,922		116,590		- 0

		1-42-441		AIRLINE TICKETING AREA-SKYW/DL		- 0		6,941		18,013		19,001		16,684		16,400		16,681		15,571		- 0

		1-42-442		AIRLINE TICKETING AREA-SKYW/UA		- 0		8,099		15,026		36,225		48,311		47,974		48,163		44,613		- 0

		1-42-443		AIRLINE TICKETING AREA-MESA/US		- 0		4,927		12,120		5,262		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-444		AIRLINE TICKETING AREA-MESA/UA		- 0		6,829		22,309		8,439		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-445		AIRLINE TICKETING AREA-ALLEGNT		- 0		2,318		11,868		14,343		13,797		13,067		11,386		10,241		- 0

		1-42-446		AIRLINE TICKETING AREA-AMEAGLE		- 0		6,023		16,130		15,350		17,609		17,420		19,308		18,178		- 0

		1-42-447		AIRLINE TICKETING AREA-LYNX AV		- 0		6,662		11,679		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-448		AIRLINE TICKETING AREA-MISC		- 0		248		869		833		330		172		513		221		- 0

		1-42-449		AIRLINE TICKETING AREA-DAC		- 0		- 0		545		1,443		2,638		2,850		3,615		3,577		- 0

		1-42-450		AIRLINE TICKETING AREA-US AIR		- 0		- 0		- 0		9,192		17,601		23,168		24,182		22,258		- 0

		1-44-100		SECURITY COSTS - GREAT LAKES		11,997		4,345		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-44-105		SECURITY COSTS - LYNX AVIATION		- 0		17,891		18,003		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-44-200		SECURITY COSTS - SKYWEST (DL)		39,003		27,799		27,796		29,434		24,514		25,661		34,670		28,816		- 0

		1-44-205		SECURITY COSTS - AIR WISCONSIN		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-44-300		SECURITY COSTS - SKYWEST (UA)		35,269		30,690		23,190		56,076		70,978		75,092		100,161		95,352		- 0

		1-44-500		SECURITY COSTS - MESA AIRLINES		56,007		48,595		53,155		21,258		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-44-600		SECURITY COSTS - ALLEGIANT AIR		11,772		10,571		18,298		21,930		20,277		22,056		23,657		21,100		- 0

		1-44-650		SECURITY COSTS-AMERICAN EAGLE		- 0		16,931		24,881		23,780		25,115		27,261		40,149		37,490		- 0

		1-44-655		SECURITY COSTS-US AIRWAYS		- 0		- 0		- 0		14,232		25,874		38,709		50,292		45,954		- 0

		1-44-700		SECURITY COSTS - MISC. CARRIER		1,774		1,429		1,343		1,292		486		269		1,070		455		- 0

		1-47-120		Rent - airline shared space		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		84,529		642,901

		1-47-110		Rent - airline exclusive space		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		144,996

		1-47-510		Landing fees - passenger		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		53,728		323,374

		1-41-125		LANDING FEES - GREAT LAKES		15,870		4,305		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-41-140		LANDING FEES - LYNX AVIATION		- 0		49,885		54,130		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-260		TERMINAL RENT - LYNX AVIATION		- 0		19,120		21,510		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-300		SHARED SPACE - GREAT LAKES		23,069		8,348		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-350		SHARED SPACE - AIR WISCONSIN		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		1-42-355		SHARED SPACE - LYNX AVIATION		- 0		48,128		59,757		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



						900,520		1,083,932		1,403,149		1,442,923		1,525,947		1,569,702		1,707,449		1,735,564		1,111,271











enplanement

				2007		2008		2009		2010		2011		2012		2013		2014		2015

		January		13,545		14,656		16,033		15,727		16,455		16,159		16,967		18,084		15,372

		February		12,059		13,149		14,953		14,432		14,126		15,409		14,628		16,015		13,904

		March		13,593		14,166		18,692		17,401		17,739		18,054		16,871		18,073		16,629

		April		13,517		14,715		17,861		17,667		17,298		17,896		17,258		17,145		16,189

		May		15,604		21,067		21,631		19,310		20,700		19,942		19,845		19,872		19,603

		June		15,062		19,449		22,379		19,023		20,493		20,153		19,202		19,142		20,381

		July		15,141		20,533		24,069		19,363		20,981		20,947		20,075		19,613

		August		14,661		20,001		23,284		20,268		19,546		19,813		18,259		18,643

		September		14,406		19,288		19,788		20,718		19,552		18,619		18,856		19,247

		October		14,813		20,460		18,693		20,756		19,265		19,101		19,787		19,148								0.029										40000

		November		14,008		17,305		16,719		18,386		17,585		17,025		17,104		16,768																		3060

		December		14,427		19,843		17,514		18,775		18,356		16,525		18,832		17,502								72		30000		72.5		($454.47)

		TOTAL		170,836		214,632		231,616		221,826		222,096		219,643		217,684		219,252		102,078







Current vs Prior

				2007		2008		2009		2010		2011		2012		2013		2014		2015		2016		2017				month		year

		January		13,545		14,656		16,033		15,727		16,455		16,159		16,967		18,084		15,372		16,197		17,779				9.8%		9.8%

		February		12,059		13,149		14,953		14,432		14,126		15,409		14,628		16,015		13,904		15,965		16,563				3.7%

																		34,099		29,276		32,162		34,342						6.8%



		March		13,593		14,166		18,692		17,401		17,739		18,054		16,871		18,073		16,647		18,533		19,540				5.4%								16953		18003

				39,197		41,971		49,678		47,560		48,320		49,622		48,466		52,172		45,923		50,695		53,882						6.3%



		April		13,517		14,715		17,861		17,667		17,298		17,896		17,258		17,145		16,189		17,488		19,985				14.3%								1,299

																		69,317		62,112		68,183		73,867						8.3%						6,071



		May		15,604		21,067		21,631		19,310		20,700		19,942		19,845		19,872		19,603		19,795		21,632				9.3%

																		89,189		81,715		87,978		95,499						8.5%

																																						19057

		June		15,062		19,449		22,379		19,023		20,493		20,153		19,202		19,142		20,381		21,360		22,156				3.7%						979

																		108,331		102,096		109,338		117,655						7.6%				7,242



		July		15,141		20,533		24,069		19,363		20,981		20,947		20,075		19,613		21,712		21,497		21,762				1.2%

																		127,944		123,808		130,835		139,417						6.6%



		August		14,661		20,001		23,284		20,268		19,546		19,813		18,259		18,643		20,428		20,335		19,860				-2.3%

																		146,587		144,236		151,170		159,277						5.4%

																																						30.30		5,721.00		173,346.30		0.07		11,648.87		970.74		90.94

		September		14,406		19,288		19,788		20,718		19,552		18,619		18,856		19,247		19,624		21,415		20,702				-3.3%				9.1%						30.30		17,721.00		536,946.30		0.07		37,425.16		3,118.76		292.17

																		165,834		163,860		172,585		179,979						4.3%								30.30		4,587.00		138,986.10		0.07		9,339.87		778.32		72.91

																																						30.30		862.00						26,118.60		2,176.55		204.05

		October		14,813		20,460		18,693		20,756		19,265		19,101		19,787		19,148		19,825		22,777		22,511				-1.2%

																		184,982		183,685		195,362		202,490						3.6%								27.27		5,721.00		156,011.67		0.07		10,483.98		873.67		79.42

																																						27.27		17,721.00		483,251.67		0.07		33,682.64		2,806.89		255.17

		November		14,008		17,305		16,719		18,386		17,585		17,025		17,104		16,768		17,507		18,954						-100.0%										27.27		4,587.00		125,087.49		0.07		8,405.88		700.49		63.68

																		201,750		201,192		214,316		202,490						-5.5%								30.30		707.00						21,422.10		1,785.18		162.29



		December		14,427		19,843		17,514		18,775		18,356		16,525		18,832		17,502		17,756		18,356						-100.0%

		TOTAL		170,836		214,632		231,616		221,826		222,096		219,643		217,684		219,252		218,948		232,672		202,490						-13.0%

























				Month		Year																						Month		Year

		Jan		9.8%		9.8%																						9.8%		9.8%

		Feb		3.7%		6.8%																						3.7%		6.8%

		Mar		5.4%		6.3%																						5.4%		6.3%

		Apr		14.3%		8.3%																						14.3%		8.3%

		May		9.3%		8.5%																						9.3%		8.5%

		Jun		3.7%		7.6%																						3.7%		7.6%

		Jul		1.2%		6.6%																						1.2%		6.6%

		Aug		-2.3%		5.4%																						-2.3%		5.4%

		Sep		-3.3%		4.3%																						-3.3%		4.3%

		Oct		-1.2%		3.6%																						-1.2%		3.6%

		Nov																										-100.0%		-5.5%

		Dec																										-100.0%		-13.0%









																		Variance

														2016		2017		Passengers		Percent

												October		22,777		22,511		(266)		-1.2%

												YTD		195,362		202,490		7,128		3.6%

				2016		2017

		Jan		16,197		17,779

		Feb		15,965		16,563

		Mar		18,533		19,540

		Apr		17,488		19,985

		May		19,795		21,632

		Jun		21,360		22,156

		Jul		21,497		21,762

		Aug		20,335		19,860

		Sep		21,415		20,702

		Oct		22,777		22,511

		Nov		18,954

		Dec		18,356



Enplanements

Current Year vs Prior Year Variance



Month	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	9.7672408470704353E-2	3.7456937049796357E-2	5.433550963146816E-2	0.14278362305580972	9.2801212427380708E-2	3.7265917602996357E-2	1.2327301483928021E-2	-2.3358741086796142E-2	-3.329441979920611E-2	-1.1678447556745852E-2	Year	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	9.7672408470704353E-2	6.7781854362291005E-2	6.2866160370845359E-2	8.3363888359268445E-2	8.5487280911136887E-2	7.6066875194351402E-2	6.5594068865364674E-2	5.3628365416418688E-2	4.2842657241359383E-2	3.6486112959531525E-2	







Enplanements 

2016 vs 2017



2016	

Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	16197	15965	18533	17488	19795	21360	21497	20335	21415	22777	18954	18356	2017	

Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	17779	16563	19540	19985	21632	22156	21762	19860	20702	22511	









Average

				Includes Revenue only																		Include Rev and Non-Rev

				2007		2008		2009		2010		2011		2012		2013		2014		2015		2016		2017						5 year average

		January		13,545		14,656		16,033		15,727		16,455		16,159		16,967		18,084		15,372		16,197		17,779						16,556		7.4%

		February		12,059		13,149		14,953		14,432		14,126		15,409		14,628		16,015		13,904		15,965		16,563						15,184		9.1%

		March		13,593		14,166		18,692		17,401		17,739		18,054		16,871		18,073		16,647		18,533		19,540						17,636		10.8%

		April		13,517		14,715		17,861		17,667		17,298		17,896		17,258		17,145		16,189		17,488		19,985						17,195		16.2%		(293)

		May		15,604		21,067		21,631		19,310		20,700		19,942		19,845		19,872		19,603		19,795		21,632						19,811		9.2%

		June		15,062		19,449		22,379		19,023		20,493		20,153		19,202		19,142		20,381		21,360		22,156						20,048		10.5%		(1,312)

		July		15,141		20,533		24,069		19,363		20,981		20,947		20,075		19,613		21,712		21,497		21,762						20,769		4.8%

		August		14,661		20,001		23,284		20,268		19,546		19,813		18,259		18,643		20,428		20,335		19,860						19,496		1.9%

		September		14,406		19,288		19,788		20,718		19,552		18,619		18,856		19,247		19,624		21,415		20,702						19,552		5.9%						166,246		172,585		3.81%

		October		14,813		20,460		18,693		20,756		19,265		19,101		19,787		19,148		19,825		22,777		22,511						20,128		11.8%

		November		14,008		17,305		16,719		18,386		17,585		17,025		17,104		16,768		17,507		18,954		- 0						17,472		-100.0%

		December		14,427		19,843		17,514		18,775		18,356		16,525		18,832		17,502		17,756		18,356		- 0						17,794		-100.0%

		TOTAL		170,836		214,632		231,616		221,826		222,096		219,643		217,684		219,252		218,948		232,672		202,490						221,640



				5 Year Average		2017 Actual

		Jan		16,556		17,779		15,953

		Feb		15,184		16,563		14,346

		Mar		17,636		19,540		16,824

		Apr		17,195		19,985		16,670

		May		19,811		21,632		19,746

		Jun		20,048		22,156		19,363

		Jul		20,769		21,762		20,090

		Aug		19,496		19,860		19,309

		Sep		19,552		20,702		18,809

		Oct		20,128		22,511		19,003

		Nov		17,472				16,863

		Dec		17,794				17,722

				221,640		202,490		214,698

														Variance

										5 Year Avg		2017		Passengers		Percent

								October		20,128		22,511		2,383		11.8%

								YTD		186,374		202,490		16,116		8.6%



Enplanements 

Current Year vs 5 Year Average



2017 Actual	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	17779	16563	19540	19985	21632	22156	21762	19860	20702	22511	5 Year Average	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	16555.8	15184.2	17635.599999999999	17195.2	19811.400000000001	20047.599999999999	20768.8	19495.599999999999	19552.2	20127.599999999999	17471.599999999999	17794.2	

Enplanements











Sheet2

						lbs		landings		enplane														landings		enplane

		Delta/Skywest		CRJ		47,000		85		3,150				50		4,250		74%						61		2,267



		United/Skywest		CR6		67,000		4						70		280

				CRJ		47,000		51						50		2,550

				ER7		74,957		1						70		70

										2,390						2,900		82%



		United/Express Jet		XRJ		44,092		4		170				50		200		85%



		United/Trans State		ERJ145L		42,549		6						50		300

				ERJ145X		44,092		49						50		2,450

										2,235						2,750		81%						145		6,336



		Allegiant		MD83		139,500		9		1,208				160		1,440		84%						10		1,207



		American		E145		43,651		82						50		4,100

				CRJ7		67,000		1						70		70

				CRJ2		47,000		90						50		4,500

										6,907						8,670		80%						151		5,930



		Key Lime								750

		Sun Country								74

														4,795		5850		0.8196581197







Enplanements and Activity Report 

16,197 15,965 

18,533 

17,488 

19,795 

21,360 

21,497 

20,335 

21,415 

22,777 

18,954 
18,356 

17,779 16,563 

19,540 

19,985 

21,632 

22,156 
21,762 

19,860 
20,702 

22,511 

 13,000

 15,000

 17,000

 19,000

 21,000

 23,000

 25,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Enplanements 
2016 vs 2017

2016

2017



Aircraft Changes – October 2016 vs 2017
Landings only

0

50

100

(50) (70) (76) (76)

CRJ2 CRJ7 CRJ9 E175

90

0

83

00

62

0

88

American Airlines

2016 2017

0

20

40

60

80

(179) (65) (50) (70) (50) (76)

737 CR6 CRJ CRJ7 ERJ145XR ER7

0

29

71

2

61

01 0

27

47
64

4

United Airlines

2016 2017

0

20

40

60

80

100

(50) (76)

CRJ ER7

88

0

89

2

Delta Airlines

2016 2017

0

2

4

6

8

(156) (166) (166)

A319 MD 83 MD 88

0

8

11

8

2

Allegiant Air

2016 2017

0

20

40

60

80

DO 328
 (32)

EMB 120
 (30)

SA-226
 (19)

SA-227
 (19)

0 0 3

73

42

11
5

43

Denver Air Connection

2016 2017



Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 

Agenda Item Summary 

TOPIC:  Commemorative Air Force (CAF) lease 

PURPOSE: Information ☐ Guidance ☐ Decision ☒ 

RECOMMENDATION: Board to determine after discussion 

DISCUSSION: The CAF (operating under the name Rocky Mountain Hangar) is requesting a 
revision to their existing lease to an annual lease payment of zero.  The CAF 
leases 4 hangars with three of the hangars sublet to third parties and the 
remaining hangar occupied by CAF in addition to the museum hangar. 
 
The CAF extended their lease by signing a 10 year option in 2016, therefore 
expiring June 30, 2027.  The current annual rent is $5,790, however, CAF has 
requested to move to a new standard lease.  This would result in an annual rent 
of $11,555. 
 
CAF is requesting to be considered for a zero dollar lease under the FAA 
policy and procedures concerning the use of airport revenue: 

The Final Policy permits airport operators to charge reduced rental 
rates and fees, including nominal rates, to not-for-profit aviation 
museums, to the extent that the reduction is reasonably justified by the 
tangible and intangible benefits to the airport or civil aviation. 
 
The Final Policy permits but does not require below-market rental 
rates, including nominal rates. The airport operator is free to treat a 
qualified aviation museum as it would any other aeronautical activity 
in setting rental rates and other fees to be paid by the museum. 

 
The attached memo is an overview of the services provided by the museum 
and CAF.  As identified in the FAA guidance, if the board is considering a rent 
reduction there needs to be a corresponding tangible/intangible benefit to the 
airport or civil aviation. 

1. Example of a tangible benefit – does the Airport receive any of the 
proceeds from a CAF fundraiser. 

2. Examples of an intangible benefit – how many people visit the 
museum, do these people seek jobs in aviation, does CAF promote 
Grand Junction Airport as a valuable partner/sponsor, and does CAF 
volunteer to help at the airshows therefore reducing required staff 
time. 

 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: Total annual rent of $11,555 

ATTACHMENTS: Memo provided by CAF 

STAFF CONTACT: Ty Minnick 
tminnick@gjairport.com 
970-248-8593 
 

mailto:tminnick@gjairport.com


CAF Rocky Mountain Wing Request for Special Lease Treatment 
Introduction 
The Commemorative Air Force Rocky Mountain Wing is a non-profit, 100% volunteer-run organization based at the 
Grand Junction Regional Airport, and has been active here since 1981.  We run an American Aviation Heritage 
Museum, and we restore, maintain, and operate historically significant WWII-era aircraft – currently a 1946 J3 Cub 
and a 1945 TBM Avenger torpedo bomber (on the Colorado Register of Historic Properties and recently nominated 
for the National Register).  We keep the memory, spirit, and values of the Greatest Generation alive by educating, 
entertaining, and inspiring current and future generations with stories of the heroes that participated in WWII, 
both in combat and on the home front. 

Request 
We ask the Airport Board to consider a 10-year, zero-cost ground lease for the CAF Museum, Hangar Complex, and 
Ramp. 

Rationale 
The Rocky Mountain Wing brings a variety of tangible and intangible benefits to the Airport and the Grand Valley 
community.   

• Our special events (e.g., Open Houses, Photo Shoots, Hangar Dances, Visits with Santa, etc.) and visits to 
our Museum expose a broad variety of people to the Airport every year.   

• Our affiliation with the Commemorative Air Force facilitates access to 160+ Flying WWII aircraft for Grand 
Junction Aviation events (e.g., the Tora! Tora! Tora! Pearl Harbor re-enactment at the 2015 GJ Air Show, 
and B29 Fifi and B17 Sentimental Journey Living History Flight Experiences). 

• Our own participation in Grand Junction Airshows and aviation events - ICAS data indicates that WWII 
aircraft are the second most popular attractions at aviation events, behind jet teams. 

• Our own Living History Flight Experience offerings in our TBM Avenger and our J3 Cub.  
• Our annual Rise Above educational/inspirational program will touch over 2,000 middle-school children 

this year.  Based on true stories of the Tuskegee Airmen and WASPs, the program shows the children how 
others overcame extreme hardship and obstacles, and encourages them to rise above their own hardships 
and perceived limitations.  Some of these children will no doubt be inspired to pursue aviation-related 
careers and/or avocations.  

• Our CAF Cadet program provides an avenue for youth (and their families) to experience aviation in a 
hands-on, interactive way. 

• Our 5-year goals are aligned with Airport and Community growth goals.  We expect to grow our 
membership from 80 to 300+.  We will triple our Museum and Hangar space to accommodate additional 
aircraft and exhibits.  We will extend the Rise Above educational outreach program across the Western 
Slope.  In short, we intend to become a destination. 

• Achieving our goals will require a great deal of advertising – media, newspaper, and word-of-mouth.  All 
our advertising will of course contain references to the GJRA as a Sponsor. 

While it is difficult to put a dollar value on these benefits, we believe the exposure and good will associated with 
our programs and presence on the airport, plus the value of including GJRA as a sponsor in our advertising, fund 
raising, and membership campaigns will far exceed the value of the lease. 

Thank you for your consideration, 
 

 

Kent Taylor – Wing Leader, CAF Rocky Mountain Wing 
970.921.3700 | acrokent@outlook.com 

mailto:acrokent@outlook.com


Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 

Agenda Item Summary 

TOPIC:  Solar Update 

PURPOSE: Information ☒ Guidance ☒ Decision ☒ 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the Board approve staff to reach out to both 
solar companies and request that they review our energy 
consumption and available land.. 

LAST ACTION: None 

DISCUSSION: After some discussion with officials at both the City of Grand 
Junction and the Town of Palisade contact was made with Xcel 
Energy. Xcel Energy verified that only two companies have been 
approved by them to offer solar subscriptions and solar farm 
developments. With only two companies being approved staff 
would like for both of them to be contacted and given equal 
opportunities to review historic energy data and evaluate any 
potential airport land with staff that could be used for a future 
solar farm. Once the research is completed staff proposes that 
each company be given the opportunity to make a presentation of 
their findings to the Board of Directors. 

FISCAL IMPACT: TBD 

COMMUNICATION    
STRATEGY: 

None 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

STAFF CONTACT: Ben Peck 
Email: bpeck@gjairport.com  
Office: 970-248-8589 
 

 
 
 

mailto:bpeck@gjairport.com


Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 

Agenda Item Summary 

TOPIC: Pay Request-GJT Runway 2017  

PURPOSE: Information ☐ Guidance ☐ Decision ☒ 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board approve the payment of Mead & 
Hunt Invoice No. 273508. 
 

LAST ACTION:  

DISCUSSION: This invoice is the progress billing for the Runway Design. 
 
Staff has reviewed the invoice and concurs with the stated level of 
completion and recommends paying the invoice.  
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

$375,877.24  
 

COMMUNICATION 
STRATEGY: 

None. 

ATTACHMENTS: Mead & Hunt Invoice No. 273508 
 

STAFFCONTACT: Eric Trinklein 
etrinklein@gjairport.com 
Office: 970-248-8597 

 

 

mailto:etrinklein@gjairport.com


























Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 

Agenda Item Summary 

TOPIC: IHC Pay Request for AIP 54 
 

PURPOSE: Information ☐ Guidance ☐ Decision ☒ 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board approve the payment of IHC Invoice 
No. 4, in the amount of $771,879.44. 
 

LAST ACTION:  

DISCUSSION: This invoice is the progress billing for work completed on AIP 54. 
 
Staff has reviewed the invoice and concurs with the stated level of 
completion and recommends paying the invoice.  
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

FAA - $694,691.49 (90%) 
State - $20,840.74 (2.7%) 
Local - $56,347.21 (7.3%) 
 

COMMUNICATION 
STRATEGY: 

None. 

ATTACHMENTS: IHC Invoice No. 4 
 

STAFFCONTACT: Eric Trinklein 
etrinklein@gjairport.com 
Office: 970-248-8597 

 

 

mailto:etrinklein@gjairport.com








Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 

Agenda Item Summary 

TOPIC:  AIP 54 Change Order #3-IHC 

PURPOSE: Information ☐ Guidance ☐ Decision ☒ 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Board approve AIP: 3-08-0027-054-2016 
Change Order #3 to Interstate Highway Construction, Inc. (IHC). 

LAST ACTION:  

DISCUSSION: The proposed pavement for the asphalt section of the baggage ramp 
will be revised to a state specifications to decrease cost since the area 
will not be accessed by aircraft traffic. This change order also 
accounts for the thicker than anticipated asphalt section removal on 
the upper aircraft parking area. The revised pavement construction 
parameters were coordinated, reviewed and agreed upon by the FAA 
and Staff. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Total project cost increase of $17,499.00 (7.3% GJT; 90%FAA; 
2.7%CDOT) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Change Order Number Three 
 

  
STAFF CONTACT: Eric Trinklein 

etrinklein@gjairport.com 
970-248-8597 

 

mailto:etrinklein@gjairport.com






Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 

Agenda Item Summary 

TOPIC: Taxiway A Rehabilitation Project  
FY 2018 Grant Application (AIP No. 3-08-0027-059-2018)  

PURPOSE: Information ☐ Guidance ☐ Decision ☒ 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Board approve the submittal of the grant application, and 
appoint the Executive Director as an authorized signatory and Project Manager to 
sign all necessary documents within the grant applications. 

LAST ACTION: The Airport Improvement Program (AIP) is continually coordinated with FAA and 
CDOT Aeronautics to provide a minimum five year plan. This project is included in 
the approved Airport Budget for 2018. 

DISCUSSION: The Airport Improvement Program (AIP) grant application encompasses projects 
listed on the Airports 2018 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 
 
The projects to be accomplished for this year and every year going forward as per the 
CIP are an important part of providing a safe and efficient airfield/overall airport 
operation. The 2018 Airport Improvement Program (AIP) project included in this 
grant application is for design and construction of the Taxiway A Rehabilitation 
Project. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

TW A 
Funding Sources 
Federal - $1,530,000 
GJRA - $170,000 

 
Total - $1,700,000 

COMMUNICATION 
STRATEGY: 

Airport staff will give presentations to the City Council and the Mesa County Board 
of County Commissioners regarding the 2018 AIP project prior to submitting the 
Application.   

ATTACHMENTS: AIP 3-08-0027-059-2018 Grant Application 

STAFF CONTACT: Eric Trinklein 
 





















































































































































Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 

Agenda Item Summary 

TOPIC: Grant Application for 27 ¼ Road Relocation 
1. FY 2018 Grant Application (AIP No. 3-08-0027-058-2018) 
2. State Aeronautics Grant Application for matching funds 

PURPOSE: Information ☐ Guidance ☐ Decision ☒ 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Board approve the submittal of the grant application and the 
State grant application, and appoint the Executive Director as an authorized signatory 
and Project Manager to sign all necessary documents within the grant applications. 

LAST ACTION: The Airport Improvement Program (AIP) is continually coordinated with FAA and 
CDOT Aeronautics to provide a minimum five year plan. This project is included in 
the approved Airport Budget for 2018. 

DISCUSSION: The Airport Improvement Program (AIP) grant application encompasses projects 
listed on the Airports 2017 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 
 
The projects to be accomplished for this year and every year going forward as per the 
CIP are an important part of providing a safe and efficient airfield/overall airport 
operation. The 2018 Airport Improvement Program (AIP) project included in this 
grant application is for the Relocation of 27 ¼ Road connected with the Runway 
11/29 Relocation. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

27 ¼ Road 
Funding Sources 
Federal - $2,088,900 
State - $75,000 
GJRA - $157,100 

 
Total - $2,321,000 
 

COMMUNICATION 
STRATEGY: 

Airport staff will give presentations to the City Council and the Mesa County Board 
of County Commissioners regarding the 2018 AIP project prior to submitting the 
Application.   

ATTACHMENTS: AIP 3-08-0027-058-2018 Grant Application 
CDOT Aeronautics Grant Application 

STAFF CONTACT: Eric Trinklein 
 













































































































FAA Form 5100-129 (1/16)  1 

Construction Project Final Acceptance  

Airport Improvement Program Sponsor Certification 

Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority  

Airport: Grand Junction Regional Airport 

Project Number: # 3-08-0027-058-2018 

Description of Work: 27 ¼ Road Relocation 

Application 

49 USC § 47105(d), authorizes the Secretary to require certification from the sponsor that it will comply 

with the statutory and administrative requirements in carrying out a project under the Airport Improvement 

Program.  General standards for final acceptance and close out of federally funded construction projects 

are in 2 CFR § 200.343 – Closeout and supplemented by FAA Order 5100.38.  The sponsor must 

determine that project costs are accurate and proper in accordance with specific requirements of the 

grant agreement and contract documents. 

Certification Statements 

Except for certification statements below marked not applicable (N/A), this list includes major 

requirements of the construction project. Selecting “yes” represents sponsor acknowledgement and 

confirmation of the certification statement.  The term “will” means Sponsor action taken at appropriate 

time based on the certification statement focus area, but no later than the end of the project period of 

performance. This list is not comprehensive and does not relieve the sponsor from fully complying with all 

applicable statutory and administrative standards. The source of the requirement is referenced within 

parenthesis. 

1. The personnel engaged in project administration, engineering supervision, project inspection and 

acceptance testing were or will be determined to be qualified and competent to perform the work 

(Grant Assurance). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

2. Construction records, including daily logs, were or will be kept by the resident 

engineer/construction inspector that fully document contractor’s performance in complying with: 

a. Technical standards (Advisory Circular (AC) 150/5370-12); 

b. Contract requirements (2 CFR part 200 and FAA Order 5100.38); and 

c. Construction safety and phasing plan measures (AC 150/5370-2). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

3. All acceptance tests specified in the project specifications were or will be performed and 

documented. (AC 150/5370-12). 

 Yes    No    N/A  



FAA Form 5100-129 (1/16)  2 

4. Sponsor has taken or will take appropriate corrective action for any test result outside of 

allowable tolerances (AC 150/5370-12). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

5. Pay reduction factors required by the specifications were applied or will be applied in computing 

final payments with a summary made available to the FAA (AC 150/5370-10). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

6. Sponsor has notified, or will promptly notify the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) of the 

following occurrences: 

a. Violations of any federal requirements set forth or included by reference in the contract 

documents (2 CFR part 200); 

b. Disputes or complaints concerning federal labor standards (29 CFR part 5); and 

c. Violations of or complaints addressing conformance with Equal Employment Opportunity or 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise requirements (41 CFR Chapter 60 and 49 CFR part 26).   

 Yes    No    N/A 

7. Weekly payroll records and statements of compliance were or will be submitted by the prime 

contractor and reviewed by the sponsor for conformance with federal labor and civil rights 

requirements as required by FAA and U.S. Department of Labor (29 CFR Part 5). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

8. Payments to the contractor were or will be made in conformance with federal requirements and 

contract provisions using sponsor internal controls that include: 

a. Retaining source documentation of payments and verifying contractor billing statements 

against actual performance (2 CFR § 200.302 and FAA Order 5100.38); 

b. Prompt payment of subcontractors for satisfactory performance of work (49 CFR § 26.29); 

c. Release of applicable retainage upon satisfactory performance of work (49 CFR § 26.29); 

and 

d. Verification that payments to DBEs represent work the DBE performed by carrying out a 

commercially useful function (49 CFR §26.55). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

9. A final project inspection was or will be conducted with representatives of the sponsor and the 

contractor present that ensure:  

a. Physical completion of project work in conformance with approved plans and specifications 

(Order 5100.38); 

b. Necessary actions to correct punch list items identified during final inspection are complete 

(Order 5100.38); and 

c. Preparation of a record of final inspection and distribution to parties to the contract 

(Order 5100.38); 

 Yes    No    N/A 



FAA Form 5100-129 (1/16)  3 

10. The project was or will be accomplished without material deviations, changes, or modifications 

from approved plans and specifications, except as approved by the FAA (Order 5100.38).  

 Yes    No    N/A 

11. The construction of all buildings have complied or will comply with the seismic construction 

requirements of 49 CFR § 41.120. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

12. For development projects, sponsor has taken or will take the following close-out actions: 

a) Submit to the FAA a final test and quality assurance report summarizing acceptance test 

results, as applicable (Grant Condition); 

b) Complete all environmental requirements as established within the project environmental 

determination (Oder 5100.38); and 

c) Prepare and retain as-built plans (Order 5100.38). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

13. Sponsor has revised or will revise their airport layout plan (ALP) that reflects improvements made 

and has submitted or will submit an updated ALP to the FAA no later than 90 days from the 

period of performance end date. (49 USC § 47107 and Order 5100.38).  

 Yes    No    N/A 

Attach documentation clarifying any above item marked with “no” response.  

Sponsor’s Certification 

I certify, for the project identified herein, responses to the forgoing items are accurate as marked and 

additional documentation for any item marked “no” is correct and complete. 

Executed on this ______________day of ____________________, ___________.   

 Name of Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority   

 Name of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: J. Merrick Taggart 

 Title of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: Board Chairman  

Signature of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: ___________________________________ 

 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. I understand that knowingly and 

willfully providing false information to the federal government is a violation of 18 USC § 1001 (False 

Statements) and could subject me to fines, imprisonment, or both. 



FAA Form 5100-130 (1/16) Page 1 of 3 

 

Drug-Free Workplace  

Airport Improvement Program Sponsor Certification 

Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority  

Airport: Grand Junction Regional Airport 

Project Number: # 3-08-0027-058-2018 

Description of Work: 27 ¼ Road Relocation 

Application 

49 USC § 47105(d) authorizes the Secretary to require certification from the sponsor that it will comply 

with the statutory and administrative requirements in carrying out a project under the Airport Improvement 

Program (AIP).  General requirements on the drug-free workplace within federal grant programs are 

described in 2 CFR part 182.  Sponsors are required to certify they will be, or will continue to provide, a 

drug-free workplace in accordance with the regulation.  The AIP project grant agreement contains specific 

assurances on the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988. 

Certification Statements 

Except for certification statements below marked as not applicable (N/A), this list includes major 

requirements of the construction project. Selecting “yes” represents sponsor acknowledgement and 

confirmation of the certification statement.  The term “will” means Sponsor action taken at appropriate 

time based on the certification statement focus area, but no later than the end of the project period of 

performance. This list is not comprehensive and does not relieve the sponsor from fully complying with all 

applicable statutory and administrative standards. The source of the requirement is referenced within 

parenthesis. 

1. A statement has been or will be published prior to commencement of project notifying employees 

that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled 

substance is prohibited in the sponsor's workplace, and specifying the actions to be taken against 

employees for violation of such prohibition (2 CFR § 182.205). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

2. An ongoing drug-free awareness program (2 CFR § 182.215) has been or will be established 

prior to commencement of project to inform employees about: 

a. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 

b. The sponsor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 

c. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and 

d. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in 

the workplace. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

  



FAA Form 5100-130 (1/16) Page 2 of 3 

 

3. Each employee to be engaged in the performance of the work has been or will be given a copy of 

the statement required within item 1 above prior to commencement of project (2 CFR § 182.210). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

4. Employees have been or will be notified in the statement required by item 1 above that, as a 

condition employment under the grant (2 CFR § 182.205(c)), the employee will: 

a. Abide by the terms of the statement; and 

b. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug statute 

occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

5. The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) will be notified in writing within 10 calendar days after 

receiving notice under item 4b above from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of 

such conviction (2 CFR § 182.225).  Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, 

including position title of the employee, to the FAA (2 CFR § 182.300).  

 Yes    No    N/A 

6. One of the following actions (2 CFR § 182.225(b)) will be taken within 30 calendar days of 

receiving a notice under item 4b above with respect to any employee who is so convicted:  

a. Take appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including 

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; 

and 

b. Require such employee to participate satisfactorily in drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation 

programs approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law enforcement, or 

other appropriate agency. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

7. A good faith effort will be made, on a continuous basis, to maintain a drug-free workplace through 

implementation of items 1 through 6 above (2 CFR § 182.200). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

Site(s) of performance of work (2 CFR § 182.230):   

Location 1 

Name of Location: Grand Junction Regional Airport 

Address: 800 Eagle Drive 

          Grand Junction, CO 81506 

 

Location 2 (if applicable) 

Name of Location:       

Address:       

 

Location 3 (if applicable) 

Name of Location:       



FAA Form 5100-130 (1/16) Page 3 of 3 

 

Address:       

 

Attach documentation clarifying any above item marked with “no” response.  

 

Sponsor’s Certification 

I certify, for the project identified herein, responses to the forgoing items are accurate as marked and 

additional documentation for any item marked “no” is correct and complete. 

Executed on this __________ day of ____________________, ___________.   

 Name of Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority   

 Name of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: J. Merrick Taggart 

 Title of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: Board Chairman  

Signature of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: ___________________________________ 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. I understand that knowingly and 

willfully providing false information to the federal government is a violation of 18 USC § 1001 (False 

Statements) and could subject me to fines, imprisonment, or both. 



DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  
 FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION  
 

FAA Form 5100-131 (1/16) Page 1 of 4 

Equipment and Construction Contracts 

Airport Improvement Sponsor Certification 

Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority  

Airport: Grand Junction Regional Airport 

Project Number: # 3-08-0027-058-2018 

Description of Work: 27 ¼ Road Relocation 

Application 

49 USC § 47105(d) authorizes the Secretary to require certification from the sponsor that it will comply 

with the statutory and administrative requirements in carrying out a project under the Airport Improvement 

Program (AIP).  General procurement standards for equipment and construction contracts within Federal 

grant programs are described in 2 CFR §§ 200.317-200.326.  Labor and Civil Rights Standards 

applicable to the AIP are established by the Department of Labor (www.dol.gov) AIP Grant Assurance 

C.1—General Federal Requirements identifies all applicable Federal Laws, regulations, executive orders, 

policies, guidelines and requirements for assistance under the AIP.  Sponsors may use state and local 

procedures provided the procurement conforms to these federal standards. 

This certification applies to all equipment and construction projects.  Equipment projects may or may not 

employ laborers and mechanics that qualify the project as a “covered contract” under requirements 

established by the Department of Labor requirements.  Sponsor shall provide appropriate responses to 

the certification statements that reflect the character of the project regardless of whether the contract is 

for a construction project or an equipment project.  

Certification Statements 

Except for certification statements below marked as not applicable (N/A), this list includes major 

requirements of the construction project. Selecting “yes” represents sponsor acknowledgement and 

confirmation of the certification statement.  The term “will” means Sponsor action taken at appropriate 

time based on the certification statement focus area, but no later than the end of the project period of 

performance. This list is not comprehensive and does not relieve the sponsor from fully complying with all 

applicable statutory and administrative standards. The source of the requirement is referenced within 

parenthesis. 

1. A written code or standard of conduct is or will be in effect prior to commencement of the project 

that governs the performance of the sponsor’s officers, employees, or agents in soliciting, 

awarding and administering procurement contracts  (2 CFR § 200.318). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

2. For all contracts, qualified and competent personnel are or will be engaged to perform contract 

administration, engineering supervision, construction inspection, and testing 

(Grant Assurance C.17). 

  Yes    No    N/A 



3. Sponsors that are required to have a Disadvantage Business Enterprise (DBE) program on file 

with the FAA have included or will include clauses required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act and 

49 CFR part 26 for Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in all contracts and subcontracts. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

4. Sponsors required to have a DBE program on file with the FAA have implemented or will 

implement monitoring and enforcement measures that: 

a. Ensure work committed to Disadvantaged Business Enterprises at contract award is 

actually performed by the named DBEs (49 CFR § 26.37(b));  

b. Include written certification that the sponsor has reviewed contract records and has 

monitored work sites for performance by DBE firms (49 CFR § 26.37(b)); and   

c. Provides for a running tally of payments made to DBE firms and a means for comparing 

actual attainments (i.e. payments) to original commitments (49 CFR § 26.37(c)).  

   Yes    No    N/A 

5. Sponsor procurement actions using the competitive sealed bid method (2 CFR § 200.320(c)). 

was or will be: 

a. Publicly advertised, allowing a sufficient response time to solicit an adequate number of 

interested contractors or vendors; 

b. Prepared to include a complete, adequate and realistic specification that defines the 

items or services in sufficient detail to allow prospective bidders to respond; 

c. Publicly opened at a time and place prescribed in the invitation for bids; and 

d. Prepared in a manner that result in a firm fixed price contract award to the lowest 

responsive and responsible bidder.  

 Yes    No    N/A 

6. For projects the Sponsor proposes to use the competitive proposal procurement method 

(2 CFR § 200.320(d)), Sponsor has requested or will request FAA approval prior to proceeding 

with a competitive proposal procurement by submitting to the FAA the following: 

a. Written justification that supports use of competitive proposal method in lieu of the 

preferred sealed bid procurement method; 

b. Plan for publicizing and soliciting an adequate number of qualified sources; and 

c. Listing of evaluation factors along with relative importance of the factors. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

7. For construction and equipment installation projects, the bid solicitation includes or will include 

the current federal wage rate schedule(s) for the appropriate type of work classifications (2 CFR 

Part 200, Appendix II). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

  



8. Concurrence was or will be obtained from the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) prior to 

contract award under any of the following circumstances (Order 5100.38D): 

a. Only one qualified person/firm submits a responsive bid; 

b. Award is to be made to other than the lowest responsible bidder; and 

c. Life cycle costing is a factor in selecting the lowest responsive bidder. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

9. All construction and equipment installation contracts contain or will contain provisions for: 

a. Access to Records (§ 200.336) 

b. Buy American Preferences (Title 49 U.S.C. § 50101) 

c. Civil Rights - General Provisions and Title VI Assurances( 41 CFR part 60) 

d. Federal Fair Labor Standards (29 U.S.C. § 201, et seq) 

e. Occupational Safety and Health Act requirements (20 CFR part 1920) 

f. Seismic Safety – building construction (49 CFR part 41) 

g. State Energy Conservation Requirements - as applicable(2 CFR part 200, Appendix II) 

h. U.S. Trade Restriction (49 CFR part 30) 

i. Veterans Preference (49 USC § 47112(c)) 

 Yes    No    N/A 

10. All construction and equipment installation contracts exceeding $2,000 contain or will contain the 

provisions established by: 

a. Davis-Bacon and Related Acts (29 CFR part 5) 

b. Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (29 CFR parts 3 and 5) 

  Yes    No    N/A 

11. All construction and equipment installation contracts exceeding $3,000 contain or will contain a 

contract provision that discourages distracted driving (E.O. 13513). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

12. All contracts exceeding $10,000 contain or will contain the following provisions as applicable: 

a. Construction and equipment installation projects - Applicable clauses from 

41 CFR Part 60 for compliance with Executive Orders 11246 and 11375 on Equal 

Employment Opportunity;  

b. Construction and equipment installation - Contract Clause prohibiting segregated facilities 

in accordance with 41 CFR part  60-1.8; 

c. Requirement to maximize use of products containing recovered materials in accordance 

with 2 CFR § 200.322 and 40 CFR part 247; and 

d. Provisions that address termination for cause and termination for convenience 

(2 CFR part 200, Appendix II). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

  



13. All contracts and subcontracts exceeding $25,000: Measures are in place or will be in place (e.g. 

checking the System for Award Management) that ensure contracts and subcontracts are not 

awarded to individuals or firms suspended, debarred, or excluded from participating in federally 

assisted projects (2 CFR parts 180 and 1200). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

14. Contracts exceeding the simplified acquisition threshold (currently $150,000) include or will 

include provisions, as applicable, that address the following:  

a. Construction and equipment installation contracts - a bid guarantee of 5%, a performance 

bond of 100%, and a payment bond of 100% (2 CFR § 200.325); 

b. Construction and equipment installation contracts - requirements of the Contract Work 

Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 USC 3701-3708, Sections 103 and 107); 

c. Restrictions on Lobbying and Influencing (2 CFR part 200, Appendix II);  

d. Conditions specifying administrative, contractual and legal remedies for instances where 

contractor of vendor violate or breach the terms and conditions of the contract (2 CFR 

§200, Appendix II); and 

e. All Contracts - Applicable standards and requirements issued under Section 306 of the 

Clean Air Act (42 USC 7401-7671q), Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 USC 1251-

1387, and Executive Order 11738. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

Attach documentation clarifying any above item marked with “no” response.  

 

Sponsor’s Certification 

I certify, for the project identified herein, responses to the forgoing items are accurate as marked and 

additional documentation for any item marked “no” is correct and complete. 

Executed on this __________ day of ____________________, ___________.   

 Name of Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority   

 Name of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: J. Merrick Taggart 

 Title of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: Board Chairman  

 

Signature of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: ___________________________________ 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. I understand that knowingly and 

willfully providing false information to the federal government is a violation of 18 USC § 1001 (False 

Statements) and could subject me to fines, imprisonment, or both. 



FAA Form 5100-132 (1/16)  Page 1 of 3 

 

Project Plans and Specifications  

Airport Improvement Program Sponsor Certification 

Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority  

Airport: Grand Junction Regional Airport 

Project Number: # 3-08-0027-058-2018 

Description of Work: 27 ¼ Road Relocation 

Application 

49 USC § 47105(d) authorizes the Secretary to require certification from the sponsor that it will comply 

with the statutory and administrative requirements in carrying out a project under the Airport Improvement 

Program (AIP). Labor and civil rights standards applicable to AIP are established by the Department of 

Labor (www.dol.gov/).  AIP Grant Assurance C.1—General Federal Requirements identifies applicable 

federal laws, regulations, executive orders, policies, guidelines and requirements for assistance under 

AIP.  A list of current advisory circulars with specific standards for procurement, design or construction of 

airports, and installation of equipment and facilities is referenced in standard airport sponsor Grant 

Assurance 34 contained in the grant agreement. 

Certification Statements 

Except for certification statements below marked as not applicable (N/A), this list includes major 

requirements of the construction project. Selecting “yes” represents sponsor acknowledgement and 

confirmation of the certification statement.  The term “will” means Sponsor action taken at appropriate 

time based on the certification statement focus area, but no later than the end of the project period of 

performance. This list is not comprehensive and does not relieve the sponsor from fully complying with all 

applicable statutory and administrative standards. The source of the requirement is referenced within 

parenthesis. 

1. The plans and specifications were or will be prepared in accordance with applicable federal 

standards and requirements, so that no deviation or modification to standards set forth in the 

advisory circulars, or FAA-accepted state standard, is necessary other than those explicitly 

approved by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) (14 USC § 47105). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

2. Specifications incorporate or will incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical 

requirement for the material or product that does not contain limiting or proprietary features that 

unduly restrict competition (2 CFR §200.319).   

 Yes    No    N/A 

3. The development that is included or will be included in the plans is depicted on the current airport 

layout plan as approved by the FAA (14 USC § 47107). 

 Yes    No    N/A 



FAA Form 5100-132 (1/16)  Page 2 of 3 

 

4. Development and features that are ineligible or unallowable for AIP funding have been or will be 

omitted from the plans and specifications (FAA Order 5100.38, par. 3-43). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

5. The specification does not use or will not use “brand name” or equal to convey requirements 

unless sponsor requests and receives approval from the FAA to use brand name (FAA Order 

5100.38, Table U-5). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

6. The specification does not impose or will not impose geographical preference in their 

procurement requirements (2 CFR §200.319(b) and FAA Order 5100.38, Table U-5). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

7. The use of prequalified lists of individuals, firms or products include or will include sufficient 

qualified sources that ensure open and free competition and that does not preclude potential 

entities from qualifying during the solicitation period (2 CFR §319(d)). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

8. Solicitations with bid alternates include or will include explicit information that establish a basis for 

award of contract that is free of arbitrary decisions by the sponsor (2 CFR § 200.319(a)(7)). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

9. Concurrence was or will be obtained from the FAA if Sponsor incorporates a value engineering 

clause into the contract (FAA Order 5100.38, par. 3-57). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

10. The plans and specifications incorporate or will incorporate applicable requirements and 

recommendations set forth in the federally approved environmental finding (49 USC §47106(c)). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

11. The design of all buildings comply or will comply with the seismic design requirements of 49 CFR 

§ 41.120. (FAA Order 5100.38d, par. 3-92) 

 Yes    No    N/A 

12. The project specification include or will include process control and acceptance tests required for 

the project by as per the applicable standard:  

a. Construction and installation as contained in Advisory Circular (AC) 150/5370-10. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

b. Snow Removal Equipment as contained in AC 150/5220-20. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

c. Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting (ARFF) vehicles as contained in AC 150/5220-10. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

  



FAA Form 5100-132 (1/16)  Page 3 of 3 

 

13. For construction activities within or near aircraft operational areas(AOA): 

a. The Sponsor has or will prepare a construction safety and phasing plan (CSPP) conforming 

to Advisory Circular 150/5370-2. 

b. Compliance with CSPP safety provisions has been or will be incorporated into the plans 

and specifications as a contractor requirement. 

c. Sponsor will not initiate work until receiving FAA’s concurrence with the CSPP (FAA Order 

5100.38, Par. 5-29). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

14. The project was or will be physically completed without federal participation in costs due to errors 

and omissions in the plans and specifications that were foreseeable at the time of project design 

(49 USC §47110(b)(1) and FAA Order 5100.38d, par. 3-100). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

Attach documentation clarifying any above item marked with “no” response.  

Sponsor’s Certification 

I certify, for the project identified herein, responses to the forgoing items are accurate as marked and 

additional documentation for any item marked “no” is correct and complete. 

Executed on this __________ day of ____________________ , ___________.   

 Name of Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority   

 Name of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: J. Merrick Taggart 

 Title of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: Board Chairman  

Signature of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: ___________________________________ 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. I understand that knowingly and 

willfully providing false information to the federal government is a violation of 18 USC § 1001 (False 

Statements) and could subject me to fines, imprisonment, or both. 



FAA Form 5100-133 (1/16) Page 1 of 3  

 

Real Property Acquisition  

Airport Improvement Program Sponsor Certification 

Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority  

Airport: Grand Junction Regional Airport 

Project Number: # 3-08-0027-058-2018 

Description of Work: 27 ¼ Road Relocation 

Application 

49 USC § 47105(d) authorizes the Secretary to require certification from the sponsor that it will comply 

with the statutory and administrative requirements in carrying out a project under the Airport Improvement 

Program (AIP).  General requirements on real property acquisition and relocation assistance are in 

49 CFR part 24.  The AIP project grant agreement contains specific requirements and assurances on the 

Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (Uniform Act), as 

amended. 

Certification Statements 

Except for certification statements below marked not applicable (N/A), this list includes major 

requirements of the real property acquisition project. Selecting “yes” represents sponsor 

acknowledgement and confirmation of the certification statement.  The term “will” means Sponsor action 

taken at appropriate time based on the certification statement focus area, but no later than the end of the 

project period of performance. This list is not comprehensive and does not relieve the sponsor from fully 

complying with all applicable statutory and administrative standards.  

1. The sponsor’s attorney or other official has or will have good and sufficient title as well as title 

evidence on property in the project. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

2. If defects and/or encumbrances exist in the title that adversely impact the sponsor’s intended use 

of property in the project, they have been or will be extinguished, modified, or subordinated. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

3. If property for airport development is or will be leased, the following conditions have been met: 

a. The term is for 20 years or the useful life of the project; 

b. The lessor is a public agency; and 

c. The lease contains no provisions that prevent full compliance with the grant agreement. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

  



FAA Form 5100-133 (1/16) Page 2 of 3  

 

4. Property in the project is or will be in conformance with the current Exhibit A property map, which 

is based on deeds, title opinions, land surveys, the approved airport layout plan, and project 

documentation. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

5. For any acquisition of property interest in noise sensitive approach zones and related areas, 

property interest was or will be obtained to ensure land is used for purposes compatible with 

noise levels associated with operation of the airport. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

6. For any acquisition of property interest in runway protection zones and areas related to 

14 CFR 77 surfaces or to clear other airport surfaces, property interest was or will be obtained for 

the following: 

a. The right of flight; 

b. The right of ingress and egress to remove obstructions; and 

c. The right to restrict the establishment of future obstructions. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

7. Appraisals prepared by qualified real estate appraisers hired by the sponsor include or will 

include the following: 

a. Valuation data to estimate the current market value for the property interest acquired on each 

parcel; and 

b. Verification that an opportunity has been provided to the property owner or representative to 

accompany appraisers during inspections. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

8. Each appraisal has been or will be reviewed by a qualified review appraiser to recommend an 

amount for the offer of just compensation, and the written appraisals as well as review appraisal 

are available to Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) for review. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

9. A written offer to acquire each parcel was or will be presented to the property owner for not less 

than the approved amount of just compensation. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

10. Effort was or will be made to acquire each property through the following negotiation procedures: 

a. No coercive action to induce agreement; and 

b. Supporting documents for settlements included in the project files. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

  



FAA Form 5100-133 (1/16) Page 3 of 3  

 

11. If a negotiated settlement is not reached, the following procedures were or will be used: 

a. Condemnation initiated and a court deposit not less than the just compensation made prior to 

possession of the property; and 

b. Supporting documents for awards included in the project files. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

12. If displacement of persons, businesses, farm operations, or non-profit organizations is involved, a 

relocation assistance program was or will be established, with displaced parties receiving general 

information on the program in writing, including relocation eligibility, and a 90-day notice to 

vacate. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

13. Relocation assistance services, comparable replacement housing, and payment of necessary 

relocation expenses were or will be provided within a reasonable time period for each displaced 

occupant in accordance with the Uniform Act. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

Attach documentation clarifying any above item marked with “no” response.  

 

Sponsor’s Certification 

I certify, for the project identified herein, responses to the forgoing items are accurate as marked and 

additional documentation for any item marked “no” is correct and complete. 

Executed on this __________ day of ____________________, ___________.   

 Name of Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority   

 Name of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: J. Merrick Taggart 

 Title of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: Board Chairman  

Signature of Sponsor’s Designated Official Representative: ___________________________________ 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. I understand that knowingly and 

willfully providing false information to the federal government is a violation of 18 USC § 1001 (False 

Statements) and could subject me to fines, imprisonment, or both. 



FAA Form 5100-134 (1/16) Page 1 of 3 

 

Selection of Consultants  

Airport Improvement Program Sponsor Certification 

Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority  

Airport: Grand Junction Regional Airport 

Project Number: # 3-08-0027-058-2018 

Description of Work: 27 ¼ Road Relocation 

Application 

49 USC § 47105(d) authorizes the Secretary to require certification from the sponsor that it will comply 

with the statutory and administrative requirements in carrying out a project under the Airport Improvement 

Program (AIP).  General requirements for selection of consultant services within federal grant programs 

are described in 2 CFR §§ 200.317-200.326.  Sponsors may use other qualifications-based procedures 

provided they are equivalent to standards of Title 40 chapter 11 and FAA Advisory Circular 150/5100-14, 

Architectural, Engineering, and Planning Consultant Services for Airport Grant Projects.  

Certification Statements 

Except for certification statements below marked as not applicable (N/A), this list includes major 

requirements of the construction project. Selecting “yes” represents sponsor acknowledgement and 

confirmation of the certification statement.  The term “will” means Sponsor action taken at appropriate 

time based on the certification statement focus area, but no later than the end of the project period of 

performance. This list is not comprehensive and does not relieve the sponsor from fully complying with all 

applicable statutory and administrative standards. The source of the requirement is referenced within 

parenthesis. 

1. Sponsor acknowledges their responsibility for the settlement of all contractual and administrative 

issues arising out of their procurement actions (2 CFR § 200.318(k)). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

2. Sponsor procurement actions ensure or will ensure full and open competition that does not 

unduly limit competition (2 CFR § 200.319). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

3. Sponsor has excluded or will exclude any entity that develops or drafts specifications, 

requirements, or statements of work associated with the development of a request-for-

qualifications (RFQ) from competing for the advertised services (2 CFR § 200.319). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

4. The advertisement describes or will describe specific project statements-of-work that provide 

clear detail of required services without unduly restricting competition (2 CFR § 200.319). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

  



FAA Form 5100-134 (1/16) Page 2 of 3 

 

5. Sponsor has publicized or will publicize a RFQ that: 

a. Solicits an adequate number of qualified sources (2 CFR § 200.320(d)); and 

b. Identifies all evaluation criteria and relative importance (2 CFR § 200.320(d)). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

6. Sponsor has based or will base selection on qualifications, experience, and disadvantaged 

business enterprise participation with price not being a selection factor (2 CFR § 200.320(d)). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

7. Sponsor has verified or will verify that agreements exceeding $25,000 are not awarded to 

individuals or firms suspended, debarred or otherwise excluded from participating in federally 

assisted projects (2 CFR §180.300).  

 Yes    No    N/A 

8. A/E services covering multiple projects: Sponsor has agreed to or will agree to: 

a. Refrain from initiating work covered by this procurement beyond five years from the date 

of selection (AC 150/5100-14); and  

b. Retain the right to conduct new procurement actions for projects identified or not 

identified in the RFQ (AC 150/5100-14). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

9. Sponsor has negotiated or will negotiate a fair and reasonable fee with the firm they select as 

most qualified for the services identified in the RFQ (2 CFR § 200.323). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

10. The Sponsor’s contract identifies or will identify costs associated with ineligible work separately 

from costs associated with eligible work (2 CFR § 200.302). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

11. Sponsor has prepared or will prepare a record of negotiations detailing the history of the 

procurement action, rationale for contract type and basis for contract fees (2 CFR §200.318(i)). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

12. Sponsor has incorporated or will incorporate mandatory contact provisions in the consultant 

contract for AIP-assisted work (49 U.S.C. Chapter 471 and 2 CFR part 200 Appendix II) 

 Yes    No    N/A 

13. For contracts that apply a time-and-material payment provision (also known as hourly rates, 

specific rates of compensation, and labor rates), the Sponsor has established or will establish: 

a. Justification that there is no other suitable contract method for the services (2 CFR 

§200.318(j)); 

b. A ceiling price that the consultant exceeds at their risk (2 CFR §200.318(j)); and 

c. A high degree of oversight that assures consultant is performing work in an efficient 

manner with effective cost controls in place 2 CFR §200.318(j)).  

 Yes    No    N/A 



FAA Form 5100-134 (1/16) Page 3 of 3 

 

14. Sponsor is not using or will not use the prohibited cost-plus-percentage-of-cost (CPPC) contract 

method. (2 CFR § 200.323(d)). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

Attach documentation clarifying any above item marked with “no” response.  

Sponsor’s Certification 

I certify, for the project identified herein, responses to the forgoing items are accurate as marked and 

additional documentation for any item marked “no” is correct and complete. 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. I understand that knowingly and 

willfully providing false information to the federal government is a violation of 18 USC § 1001 (False 

Statements) and could subject me to fines, imprisonment, or both. 

Executed on this __________ day of ____________________, ___________.   

 Name of Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority   

 Name of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: J. Merrick Taggart 

 Title of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: Board Chairman  

Signature of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: ___________________________________ 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. I understand that knowingly and 

willfully providing false information to the federal government is a violation of 18 USC § 1001 (False 

Statements) and could subject me to fines, imprisonment, or both. 



FAA Form 5100-135 (1/16)   Page 1 of 2  

 

Certification and Disclosure Regarding Potential Conflicts of Interest 

Airport Improvement Program Sponsor Certification 

Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority  

Airport: Grand Junction Regional Airport 

Project Number: # 3-08-0027-058-2018 

Description of Work: 27 ¼ Road Relocation 

Application 

Title 2 CFR § 200.112 and § 1201.112 address Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) requirements for 

conflict of interest. As a condition of eligibility under the Airport Improvement Program (AIP), sponsors 

must comply with FAA policy on conflict of interest. Such a conflict would arise when any of the following 

have a financial or other interest in the firm selected for award: 

a) The employee, officer or agent,  

b) Any member of his immediate family,  

c) His or her partner, or  

d) An organization which employs, or is about to employ, any of the above. 

Selecting “yes” represents sponsor or sub-recipient acknowledgement and confirmation of the certification 

statement.  Selecting “No” represents sponsor or sub-recipient disclosure that it cannot fully comply with 

the certification statement.  If “No” is selected, provide support information explaining the negative 

response as an attachment to this form.  This includes whether the sponsor has established standards for 

financial interest that are not substantial or unsolicited gifts are of nominal value (2 CFR § 200.318(c)). 

The term “will” means Sponsor action taken at appropriate time based on the certification statement focus 

area, but no later than the end of the project period of performance. 

 

Certification Statements 

1. The sponsor or sub-recipient maintains a written standards of conduct governing conflict of 

interest and the performance of their employees engaged in the award and administration of 

contracts (2 CFR § 200.318(c)). To the extent permitted by state or local law or regulations, such 

standards of conduct provide for penalties, sanctions, or other disciplinary actions for violations of 

such standards by the sponsor’s and sub-recipient’s officers, employees, or agents, or by 

contractors or their agents.  

 Yes    No 

2. The sponsor’s or sub-recipient’s officers, employees or agents have not and will not solicit or 

accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from contractors, potential contractors, or 

parties to sub-agreements (2 CFR § 200.318(c)). 



FAA Form 5100-135 (1/16)   Page 2 of 2  

 

 Yes    No 

 
3. The sponsor or sub-recipient certifies that is has disclosed and will disclose to the FAA any 

known potential conflict of interest (2 CFR § 1200.112). 

 Yes    No 

Attach documentation clarifying any above item marked with “no” response.  

Sponsor’s Certification 

I certify, for the project identified herein, responses to the forgoing items are accurate as marked and 

have the explanation for any item marked “no” is correct and complete. 

Executed on this       day of ____________________, ___________.   

 Name of Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority   

 Name of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: J. Merrick Taggart 

 Title of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: Board Chairman  

Signature of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: ___________________________________ 

 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. I understand that knowingly and 

willfully providing false information to the federal government is a violation of 18 USC § 1001 (False 

Statements) and could subject me to fines, imprisonment, or both. 



Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 

Agenda Item Summary 

TOPIC: Grant Applications for Remote Transmitter/Receiver (RTR) Relocation 
1. FY 2018 Grant Application (AIP No. 3-08-0027-057-2018) 
2. State Aeronautics Grant Application  

PURPOSE: Information ☐ Guidance ☐ Decision ☒ 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Board approve the submittal of the grant application and the 
State grant application, and appoint the Executive Director as an authorized signatory 
and Project Manager to sign all necessary documents within the grant applications. 

LAST ACTION: The Airport Improvement Program (AIP) is continually coordinated with FAA and 
CDOT Aeronautics to provide a minimum five year plan. This project is included in 
the approved Airport Budget for 2018. 

DISCUSSION: The Airport Improvement Program (AIP) grant application encompasses projects 
listed on the Airports 2018 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 
 
The projects to be accomplished for this year and every year going forward as per the 
CIP are an important part of providing a safe and efficient airfield/overall airport 
operation. The 2018 Airport Improvement Program (AIP) project included in this 
grant application is for the construction phase of the RTR relocation connected with 
the Runway 11/29 Relocation. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

RTR 
Funding Sources 
Federal - $3,601,800 
State - $75,000 
GJRA - $325,200 

 
Total - $4,002,000 

COMMUNICATION 
STRATEGY: 

Airport staff will give presentations to the City Council and the Mesa County Board 
of County Commissioners regarding the 2018 AIP project prior to submitting the 
Application.   

ATTACHMENTS: AIP 3-08-0027-057-2018 Grant Application 
CDOT Aeronautics Grant Application 

STAFF CONTACT: Eric Trinklein 
 













































































































FAA Form 5100-129 (1/16)  1 

Construction Project Final Acceptance  

Airport Improvement Program Sponsor Certification 

Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority  

Airport: Grand Junction Regional Airport 

Project Number: # 3-08-0027-057-2018 

Description of Work: RTR Relocation 

Application 

49 USC § 47105(d), authorizes the Secretary to require certification from the sponsor that it will comply 

with the statutory and administrative requirements in carrying out a project under the Airport Improvement 

Program.  General standards for final acceptance and close out of federally funded construction projects 

are in 2 CFR § 200.343 – Closeout and supplemented by FAA Order 5100.38.  The sponsor must 

determine that project costs are accurate and proper in accordance with specific requirements of the 

grant agreement and contract documents. 

Certification Statements 

Except for certification statements below marked not applicable (N/A), this list includes major 

requirements of the construction project. Selecting “yes” represents sponsor acknowledgement and 

confirmation of the certification statement.  The term “will” means Sponsor action taken at appropriate 

time based on the certification statement focus area, but no later than the end of the project period of 

performance. This list is not comprehensive and does not relieve the sponsor from fully complying with all 

applicable statutory and administrative standards. The source of the requirement is referenced within 

parenthesis. 

1. The personnel engaged in project administration, engineering supervision, project inspection and 

acceptance testing were or will be determined to be qualified and competent to perform the work 

(Grant Assurance). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

2. Construction records, including daily logs, were or will be kept by the resident 

engineer/construction inspector that fully document contractor’s performance in complying with: 

a. Technical standards (Advisory Circular (AC) 150/5370-12); 

b. Contract requirements (2 CFR part 200 and FAA Order 5100.38); and 

c. Construction safety and phasing plan measures (AC 150/5370-2). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

3. All acceptance tests specified in the project specifications were or will be performed and 

documented. (AC 150/5370-12). 

 Yes    No    N/A  



FAA Form 5100-129 (1/16)  2 

4. Sponsor has taken or will take appropriate corrective action for any test result outside of 

allowable tolerances (AC 150/5370-12). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

5. Pay reduction factors required by the specifications were applied or will be applied in computing 

final payments with a summary made available to the FAA (AC 150/5370-10). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

6. Sponsor has notified, or will promptly notify the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) of the 

following occurrences: 

a. Violations of any federal requirements set forth or included by reference in the contract 

documents (2 CFR part 200); 

b. Disputes or complaints concerning federal labor standards (29 CFR part 5); and 

c. Violations of or complaints addressing conformance with Equal Employment Opportunity or 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise requirements (41 CFR Chapter 60 and 49 CFR part 26).   

 Yes    No    N/A 

7. Weekly payroll records and statements of compliance were or will be submitted by the prime 

contractor and reviewed by the sponsor for conformance with federal labor and civil rights 

requirements as required by FAA and U.S. Department of Labor (29 CFR Part 5). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

8. Payments to the contractor were or will be made in conformance with federal requirements and 

contract provisions using sponsor internal controls that include: 

a. Retaining source documentation of payments and verifying contractor billing statements 

against actual performance (2 CFR § 200.302 and FAA Order 5100.38); 

b. Prompt payment of subcontractors for satisfactory performance of work (49 CFR § 26.29); 

c. Release of applicable retainage upon satisfactory performance of work (49 CFR § 26.29); 

and 

d. Verification that payments to DBEs represent work the DBE performed by carrying out a 

commercially useful function (49 CFR §26.55). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

9. A final project inspection was or will be conducted with representatives of the sponsor and the 

contractor present that ensure:  

a. Physical completion of project work in conformance with approved plans and specifications 

(Order 5100.38); 

b. Necessary actions to correct punch list items identified during final inspection are complete 

(Order 5100.38); and 

c. Preparation of a record of final inspection and distribution to parties to the contract 

(Order 5100.38); 

 Yes    No    N/A 



FAA Form 5100-129 (1/16)  3 

10. The project was or will be accomplished without material deviations, changes, or modifications 

from approved plans and specifications, except as approved by the FAA (Order 5100.38).  

 Yes    No    N/A 

11. The construction of all buildings have complied or will comply with the seismic construction 

requirements of 49 CFR § 41.120. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

12. For development projects, sponsor has taken or will take the following close-out actions: 

a) Submit to the FAA a final test and quality assurance report summarizing acceptance test 

results, as applicable (Grant Condition); 

b) Complete all environmental requirements as established within the project environmental 

determination (Oder 5100.38); and 

c) Prepare and retain as-built plans (Order 5100.38). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

13. Sponsor has revised or will revise their airport layout plan (ALP) that reflects improvements made 

and has submitted or will submit an updated ALP to the FAA no later than 90 days from the 

period of performance end date. (49 USC § 47107 and Order 5100.38).  

 Yes    No    N/A 

Attach documentation clarifying any above item marked with “no” response.  

Sponsor’s Certification 

I certify, for the project identified herein, responses to the forgoing items are accurate as marked and 

additional documentation for any item marked “no” is correct and complete. 

Executed on this ______________day of ____________________, ___________.   

 Name of Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority   

 Name of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: J. Merrick Taggart 

 Title of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: Board Chairman  

Signature of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: ___________________________________ 

 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. I understand that knowingly and 

willfully providing false information to the federal government is a violation of 18 USC § 1001 (False 

Statements) and could subject me to fines, imprisonment, or both. 



FAA Form 5100-130 (1/16) Page 1 of 3 

 

Drug-Free Workplace  

Airport Improvement Program Sponsor Certification 

Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority  

Airport: Grand Junction Regional Airport 

Project Number: # 3-08-0027-057-2018 

Description of Work: RTR Relocation 

Application 

49 USC § 47105(d) authorizes the Secretary to require certification from the sponsor that it will comply 

with the statutory and administrative requirements in carrying out a project under the Airport Improvement 

Program (AIP).  General requirements on the drug-free workplace within federal grant programs are 

described in 2 CFR part 182.  Sponsors are required to certify they will be, or will continue to provide, a 

drug-free workplace in accordance with the regulation.  The AIP project grant agreement contains specific 

assurances on the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988. 

Certification Statements 

Except for certification statements below marked as not applicable (N/A), this list includes major 

requirements of the construction project. Selecting “yes” represents sponsor acknowledgement and 

confirmation of the certification statement.  The term “will” means Sponsor action taken at appropriate 

time based on the certification statement focus area, but no later than the end of the project period of 

performance. This list is not comprehensive and does not relieve the sponsor from fully complying with all 

applicable statutory and administrative standards. The source of the requirement is referenced within 

parenthesis. 

1. A statement has been or will be published prior to commencement of project notifying employees 

that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled 

substance is prohibited in the sponsor's workplace, and specifying the actions to be taken against 

employees for violation of such prohibition (2 CFR § 182.205). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

2. An ongoing drug-free awareness program (2 CFR § 182.215) has been or will be established 

prior to commencement of project to inform employees about: 

a. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 

b. The sponsor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 

c. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and 

d. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in 

the workplace. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

  



FAA Form 5100-130 (1/16) Page 2 of 3 

 

3. Each employee to be engaged in the performance of the work has been or will be given a copy of 

the statement required within item 1 above prior to commencement of project (2 CFR § 182.210). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

4. Employees have been or will be notified in the statement required by item 1 above that, as a 

condition employment under the grant (2 CFR § 182.205(c)), the employee will: 

a. Abide by the terms of the statement; and 

b. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug statute 

occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

5. The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) will be notified in writing within 10 calendar days after 

receiving notice under item 4b above from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of 

such conviction (2 CFR § 182.225).  Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, 

including position title of the employee, to the FAA (2 CFR § 182.300).  

 Yes    No    N/A 

6. One of the following actions (2 CFR § 182.225(b)) will be taken within 30 calendar days of 

receiving a notice under item 4b above with respect to any employee who is so convicted:  

a. Take appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including 

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; 

and 

b. Require such employee to participate satisfactorily in drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation 

programs approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law enforcement, or 

other appropriate agency. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

7. A good faith effort will be made, on a continuous basis, to maintain a drug-free workplace through 

implementation of items 1 through 6 above (2 CFR § 182.200). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

Site(s) of performance of work (2 CFR § 182.230):   

Location 1 

Name of Location: Grand Junction Regional Airport 

Address: 800 Eagle Drive 

          Grand Junction, CO 81506 

 

Location 2 (if applicable) 

Name of Location:       

Address:       

 

Location 3 (if applicable) 

Name of Location:       



FAA Form 5100-130 (1/16) Page 3 of 3 

 

Address:       

 

Attach documentation clarifying any above item marked with “no” response.  

 

Sponsor’s Certification 

I certify, for the project identified herein, responses to the forgoing items are accurate as marked and 

additional documentation for any item marked “no” is correct and complete. 

Executed on this __________ day of ____________________, ___________.   

 Name of Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority   

 Name of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: J. Merrick Taggart 

 Title of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: Board Chairman  

Signature of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: ___________________________________ 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. I understand that knowingly and 

willfully providing false information to the federal government is a violation of 18 USC § 1001 (False 

Statements) and could subject me to fines, imprisonment, or both. 



DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  
 FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION  
 

FAA Form 5100-131 (1/16) Page 1 of 4 

Equipment and Construction Contracts 

Airport Improvement Sponsor Certification 

Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority  

Airport: Grand Junction Regional Airport 

Project Number: # 3-08-0027-057-2018 

Description of Work: RTR Relocation 

Application 

49 USC § 47105(d) authorizes the Secretary to require certification from the sponsor that it will comply 

with the statutory and administrative requirements in carrying out a project under the Airport Improvement 

Program (AIP).  General procurement standards for equipment and construction contracts within Federal 

grant programs are described in 2 CFR §§ 200.317-200.326.  Labor and Civil Rights Standards 

applicable to the AIP are established by the Department of Labor (www.dol.gov) AIP Grant Assurance 

C.1—General Federal Requirements identifies all applicable Federal Laws, regulations, executive orders, 

policies, guidelines and requirements for assistance under the AIP.  Sponsors may use state and local 

procedures provided the procurement conforms to these federal standards. 

This certification applies to all equipment and construction projects.  Equipment projects may or may not 

employ laborers and mechanics that qualify the project as a “covered contract” under requirements 

established by the Department of Labor requirements.  Sponsor shall provide appropriate responses to 

the certification statements that reflect the character of the project regardless of whether the contract is 

for a construction project or an equipment project.  

Certification Statements 

Except for certification statements below marked as not applicable (N/A), this list includes major 

requirements of the construction project. Selecting “yes” represents sponsor acknowledgement and 

confirmation of the certification statement.  The term “will” means Sponsor action taken at appropriate 

time based on the certification statement focus area, but no later than the end of the project period of 

performance. This list is not comprehensive and does not relieve the sponsor from fully complying with all 

applicable statutory and administrative standards. The source of the requirement is referenced within 

parenthesis. 

1. A written code or standard of conduct is or will be in effect prior to commencement of the project 

that governs the performance of the sponsor’s officers, employees, or agents in soliciting, 

awarding and administering procurement contracts  (2 CFR § 200.318). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

2. For all contracts, qualified and competent personnel are or will be engaged to perform contract 

administration, engineering supervision, construction inspection, and testing 

(Grant Assurance C.17). 

  Yes    No    N/A 



3. Sponsors that are required to have a Disadvantage Business Enterprise (DBE) program on file 

with the FAA have included or will include clauses required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act and 

49 CFR part 26 for Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in all contracts and subcontracts. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

4. Sponsors required to have a DBE program on file with the FAA have implemented or will 

implement monitoring and enforcement measures that: 

a. Ensure work committed to Disadvantaged Business Enterprises at contract award is 

actually performed by the named DBEs (49 CFR § 26.37(b));  

b. Include written certification that the sponsor has reviewed contract records and has 

monitored work sites for performance by DBE firms (49 CFR § 26.37(b)); and   

c. Provides for a running tally of payments made to DBE firms and a means for comparing 

actual attainments (i.e. payments) to original commitments (49 CFR § 26.37(c)).  

   Yes    No    N/A 

5. Sponsor procurement actions using the competitive sealed bid method (2 CFR § 200.320(c)). 

was or will be: 

a. Publicly advertised, allowing a sufficient response time to solicit an adequate number of 

interested contractors or vendors; 

b. Prepared to include a complete, adequate and realistic specification that defines the 

items or services in sufficient detail to allow prospective bidders to respond; 

c. Publicly opened at a time and place prescribed in the invitation for bids; and 

d. Prepared in a manner that result in a firm fixed price contract award to the lowest 

responsive and responsible bidder.  

 Yes    No    N/A 

6. For projects the Sponsor proposes to use the competitive proposal procurement method 

(2 CFR § 200.320(d)), Sponsor has requested or will request FAA approval prior to proceeding 

with a competitive proposal procurement by submitting to the FAA the following: 

a. Written justification that supports use of competitive proposal method in lieu of the 

preferred sealed bid procurement method; 

b. Plan for publicizing and soliciting an adequate number of qualified sources; and 

c. Listing of evaluation factors along with relative importance of the factors. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

7. For construction and equipment installation projects, the bid solicitation includes or will include 

the current federal wage rate schedule(s) for the appropriate type of work classifications (2 CFR 

Part 200, Appendix II). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

  



8. Concurrence was or will be obtained from the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) prior to 

contract award under any of the following circumstances (Order 5100.38D): 

a. Only one qualified person/firm submits a responsive bid; 

b. Award is to be made to other than the lowest responsible bidder; and 

c. Life cycle costing is a factor in selecting the lowest responsive bidder. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

9. All construction and equipment installation contracts contain or will contain provisions for: 

a. Access to Records (§ 200.336) 

b. Buy American Preferences (Title 49 U.S.C. § 50101) 

c. Civil Rights - General Provisions and Title VI Assurances( 41 CFR part 60) 

d. Federal Fair Labor Standards (29 U.S.C. § 201, et seq) 

e. Occupational Safety and Health Act requirements (20 CFR part 1920) 

f. Seismic Safety – building construction (49 CFR part 41) 

g. State Energy Conservation Requirements - as applicable(2 CFR part 200, Appendix II) 

h. U.S. Trade Restriction (49 CFR part 30) 

i. Veterans Preference (49 USC § 47112(c)) 

 Yes    No    N/A 

10. All construction and equipment installation contracts exceeding $2,000 contain or will contain the 

provisions established by: 

a. Davis-Bacon and Related Acts (29 CFR part 5) 

b. Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (29 CFR parts 3 and 5) 

  Yes    No    N/A 

11. All construction and equipment installation contracts exceeding $3,000 contain or will contain a 

contract provision that discourages distracted driving (E.O. 13513). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

12. All contracts exceeding $10,000 contain or will contain the following provisions as applicable: 

a. Construction and equipment installation projects - Applicable clauses from 

41 CFR Part 60 for compliance with Executive Orders 11246 and 11375 on Equal 

Employment Opportunity;  

b. Construction and equipment installation - Contract Clause prohibiting segregated facilities 

in accordance with 41 CFR part  60-1.8; 

c. Requirement to maximize use of products containing recovered materials in accordance 

with 2 CFR § 200.322 and 40 CFR part 247; and 

d. Provisions that address termination for cause and termination for convenience 

(2 CFR part 200, Appendix II). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

  



13. All contracts and subcontracts exceeding $25,000: Measures are in place or will be in place (e.g. 

checking the System for Award Management) that ensure contracts and subcontracts are not 

awarded to individuals or firms suspended, debarred, or excluded from participating in federally 

assisted projects (2 CFR parts 180 and 1200). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

14. Contracts exceeding the simplified acquisition threshold (currently $150,000) include or will 

include provisions, as applicable, that address the following:  

a. Construction and equipment installation contracts - a bid guarantee of 5%, a performance 

bond of 100%, and a payment bond of 100% (2 CFR § 200.325); 

b. Construction and equipment installation contracts - requirements of the Contract Work 

Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 USC 3701-3708, Sections 103 and 107); 

c. Restrictions on Lobbying and Influencing (2 CFR part 200, Appendix II);  

d. Conditions specifying administrative, contractual and legal remedies for instances where 

contractor of vendor violate or breach the terms and conditions of the contract (2 CFR 

§200, Appendix II); and 

e. All Contracts - Applicable standards and requirements issued under Section 306 of the 

Clean Air Act (42 USC 7401-7671q), Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 USC 1251-

1387, and Executive Order 11738. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

Attach documentation clarifying any above item marked with “no” response.  

 

Sponsor’s Certification 

I certify, for the project identified herein, responses to the forgoing items are accurate as marked and 

additional documentation for any item marked “no” is correct and complete. 

Executed on this __________ day of ____________________, ___________.   

 Name of Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority   

 Name of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: J. Merrick Taggart 

 Title of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: Board Chairman  

 

Signature of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: ___________________________________ 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. I understand that knowingly and 

willfully providing false information to the federal government is a violation of 18 USC § 1001 (False 

Statements) and could subject me to fines, imprisonment, or both. 



FAA Form 5100-132 (1/16)  Page 1 of 3 

 

Project Plans and Specifications  

Airport Improvement Program Sponsor Certification 

Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority  

Airport: Grand Junction Regional Airport 

Project Number: # 3-08-0027-057-2018 

Description of Work: RTR Relocation 

Application 

49 USC § 47105(d) authorizes the Secretary to require certification from the sponsor that it will comply 

with the statutory and administrative requirements in carrying out a project under the Airport Improvement 

Program (AIP). Labor and civil rights standards applicable to AIP are established by the Department of 

Labor (www.dol.gov/).  AIP Grant Assurance C.1—General Federal Requirements identifies applicable 

federal laws, regulations, executive orders, policies, guidelines and requirements for assistance under 

AIP.  A list of current advisory circulars with specific standards for procurement, design or construction of 

airports, and installation of equipment and facilities is referenced in standard airport sponsor Grant 

Assurance 34 contained in the grant agreement. 

Certification Statements 

Except for certification statements below marked as not applicable (N/A), this list includes major 

requirements of the construction project. Selecting “yes” represents sponsor acknowledgement and 

confirmation of the certification statement.  The term “will” means Sponsor action taken at appropriate 

time based on the certification statement focus area, but no later than the end of the project period of 

performance. This list is not comprehensive and does not relieve the sponsor from fully complying with all 

applicable statutory and administrative standards. The source of the requirement is referenced within 

parenthesis. 

1. The plans and specifications were or will be prepared in accordance with applicable federal 

standards and requirements, so that no deviation or modification to standards set forth in the 

advisory circulars, or FAA-accepted state standard, is necessary other than those explicitly 

approved by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) (14 USC § 47105). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

2. Specifications incorporate or will incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical 

requirement for the material or product that does not contain limiting or proprietary features that 

unduly restrict competition (2 CFR §200.319).   

 Yes    No    N/A 

3. The development that is included or will be included in the plans is depicted on the current airport 

layout plan as approved by the FAA (14 USC § 47107). 

 Yes    No    N/A 



FAA Form 5100-132 (1/16)  Page 2 of 3 

 

4. Development and features that are ineligible or unallowable for AIP funding have been or will be 

omitted from the plans and specifications (FAA Order 5100.38, par. 3-43). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

5. The specification does not use or will not use “brand name” or equal to convey requirements 

unless sponsor requests and receives approval from the FAA to use brand name (FAA Order 

5100.38, Table U-5). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

6. The specification does not impose or will not impose geographical preference in their 

procurement requirements (2 CFR §200.319(b) and FAA Order 5100.38, Table U-5). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

7. The use of prequalified lists of individuals, firms or products include or will include sufficient 

qualified sources that ensure open and free competition and that does not preclude potential 

entities from qualifying during the solicitation period (2 CFR §319(d)). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

8. Solicitations with bid alternates include or will include explicit information that establish a basis for 

award of contract that is free of arbitrary decisions by the sponsor (2 CFR § 200.319(a)(7)). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

9. Concurrence was or will be obtained from the FAA if Sponsor incorporates a value engineering 

clause into the contract (FAA Order 5100.38, par. 3-57). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

10. The plans and specifications incorporate or will incorporate applicable requirements and 

recommendations set forth in the federally approved environmental finding (49 USC §47106(c)). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

11. The design of all buildings comply or will comply with the seismic design requirements of 49 CFR 

§ 41.120. (FAA Order 5100.38d, par. 3-92) 

 Yes    No    N/A 

12. The project specification include or will include process control and acceptance tests required for 

the project by as per the applicable standard:  

a. Construction and installation as contained in Advisory Circular (AC) 150/5370-10. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

b. Snow Removal Equipment as contained in AC 150/5220-20. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

c. Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting (ARFF) vehicles as contained in AC 150/5220-10. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

  



FAA Form 5100-132 (1/16)  Page 3 of 3 

 

13. For construction activities within or near aircraft operational areas(AOA): 

a. The Sponsor has or will prepare a construction safety and phasing plan (CSPP) conforming 

to Advisory Circular 150/5370-2. 

b. Compliance with CSPP safety provisions has been or will be incorporated into the plans 

and specifications as a contractor requirement. 

c. Sponsor will not initiate work until receiving FAA’s concurrence with the CSPP (FAA Order 

5100.38, Par. 5-29). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

14. The project was or will be physically completed without federal participation in costs due to errors 

and omissions in the plans and specifications that were foreseeable at the time of project design 

(49 USC §47110(b)(1) and FAA Order 5100.38d, par. 3-100). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

Attach documentation clarifying any above item marked with “no” response.  

Sponsor’s Certification 

I certify, for the project identified herein, responses to the forgoing items are accurate as marked and 

additional documentation for any item marked “no” is correct and complete. 

Executed on this __________ day of ____________________ , ___________.   

 Name of Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority   

 Name of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: J. Merrick Taggart 

 Title of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: Board Chairman  

Signature of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: ___________________________________ 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. I understand that knowingly and 

willfully providing false information to the federal government is a violation of 18 USC § 1001 (False 

Statements) and could subject me to fines, imprisonment, or both. 



FAA Form 5100-133 (1/16) Page 1 of 3  

 

Real Property Acquisition  

Airport Improvement Program Sponsor Certification 

Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority  

Airport: Grand Junction Regional Airport 

Project Number: # 3-08-0027-057-2018 

Description of Work: RTR Relocation 

Application 

49 USC § 47105(d) authorizes the Secretary to require certification from the sponsor that it will comply 

with the statutory and administrative requirements in carrying out a project under the Airport Improvement 

Program (AIP).  General requirements on real property acquisition and relocation assistance are in 

49 CFR part 24.  The AIP project grant agreement contains specific requirements and assurances on the 

Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (Uniform Act), as 

amended. 

Certification Statements 

Except for certification statements below marked not applicable (N/A), this list includes major 

requirements of the real property acquisition project. Selecting “yes” represents sponsor 

acknowledgement and confirmation of the certification statement.  The term “will” means Sponsor action 

taken at appropriate time based on the certification statement focus area, but no later than the end of the 

project period of performance. This list is not comprehensive and does not relieve the sponsor from fully 

complying with all applicable statutory and administrative standards.  

1. The sponsor’s attorney or other official has or will have good and sufficient title as well as title 

evidence on property in the project. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

2. If defects and/or encumbrances exist in the title that adversely impact the sponsor’s intended use 

of property in the project, they have been or will be extinguished, modified, or subordinated. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

3. If property for airport development is or will be leased, the following conditions have been met: 

a. The term is for 20 years or the useful life of the project; 

b. The lessor is a public agency; and 

c. The lease contains no provisions that prevent full compliance with the grant agreement. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

  



FAA Form 5100-133 (1/16) Page 2 of 3  

 

4. Property in the project is or will be in conformance with the current Exhibit A property map, which 

is based on deeds, title opinions, land surveys, the approved airport layout plan, and project 

documentation. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

5. For any acquisition of property interest in noise sensitive approach zones and related areas, 

property interest was or will be obtained to ensure land is used for purposes compatible with 

noise levels associated with operation of the airport. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

6. For any acquisition of property interest in runway protection zones and areas related to 

14 CFR 77 surfaces or to clear other airport surfaces, property interest was or will be obtained for 

the following: 

a. The right of flight; 

b. The right of ingress and egress to remove obstructions; and 

c. The right to restrict the establishment of future obstructions. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

7. Appraisals prepared by qualified real estate appraisers hired by the sponsor include or will 

include the following: 

a. Valuation data to estimate the current market value for the property interest acquired on each 

parcel; and 

b. Verification that an opportunity has been provided to the property owner or representative to 

accompany appraisers during inspections. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

8. Each appraisal has been or will be reviewed by a qualified review appraiser to recommend an 

amount for the offer of just compensation, and the written appraisals as well as review appraisal 

are available to Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) for review. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

9. A written offer to acquire each parcel was or will be presented to the property owner for not less 

than the approved amount of just compensation. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

10. Effort was or will be made to acquire each property through the following negotiation procedures: 

a. No coercive action to induce agreement; and 

b. Supporting documents for settlements included in the project files. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

  



FAA Form 5100-133 (1/16) Page 3 of 3  

 

11. If a negotiated settlement is not reached, the following procedures were or will be used: 

a. Condemnation initiated and a court deposit not less than the just compensation made prior to 

possession of the property; and 

b. Supporting documents for awards included in the project files. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

12. If displacement of persons, businesses, farm operations, or non-profit organizations is involved, a 

relocation assistance program was or will be established, with displaced parties receiving general 

information on the program in writing, including relocation eligibility, and a 90-day notice to 

vacate. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

13. Relocation assistance services, comparable replacement housing, and payment of necessary 

relocation expenses were or will be provided within a reasonable time period for each displaced 

occupant in accordance with the Uniform Act. 

 Yes    No    N/A 

Attach documentation clarifying any above item marked with “no” response.  

 

Sponsor’s Certification 

I certify, for the project identified herein, responses to the forgoing items are accurate as marked and 

additional documentation for any item marked “no” is correct and complete. 

Executed on this __________ day of ____________________, ___________.   

 Name of Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority   

 Name of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: J. Merrick Taggart 

 Title of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: Board Chairman  

Signature of Sponsor’s Designated Official Representative: ___________________________________ 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. I understand that knowingly and 

willfully providing false information to the federal government is a violation of 18 USC § 1001 (False 

Statements) and could subject me to fines, imprisonment, or both. 



FAA Form 5100-134 (1/16) Page 1 of 3 

 

Selection of Consultants  

Airport Improvement Program Sponsor Certification 

Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority  

Airport: Grand Junction Regional Airport 

Project Number: # 3-08-0027-057-2018 

Description of Work: RTR Relocation 

Application 

49 USC § 47105(d) authorizes the Secretary to require certification from the sponsor that it will comply 

with the statutory and administrative requirements in carrying out a project under the Airport Improvement 

Program (AIP).  General requirements for selection of consultant services within federal grant programs 

are described in 2 CFR §§ 200.317-200.326.  Sponsors may use other qualifications-based procedures 

provided they are equivalent to standards of Title 40 chapter 11 and FAA Advisory Circular 150/5100-14, 

Architectural, Engineering, and Planning Consultant Services for Airport Grant Projects.  

Certification Statements 

Except for certification statements below marked as not applicable (N/A), this list includes major 

requirements of the construction project. Selecting “yes” represents sponsor acknowledgement and 

confirmation of the certification statement.  The term “will” means Sponsor action taken at appropriate 

time based on the certification statement focus area, but no later than the end of the project period of 

performance. This list is not comprehensive and does not relieve the sponsor from fully complying with all 

applicable statutory and administrative standards. The source of the requirement is referenced within 

parenthesis. 

1. Sponsor acknowledges their responsibility for the settlement of all contractual and administrative 

issues arising out of their procurement actions (2 CFR § 200.318(k)). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

2. Sponsor procurement actions ensure or will ensure full and open competition that does not 

unduly limit competition (2 CFR § 200.319). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

3. Sponsor has excluded or will exclude any entity that develops or drafts specifications, 

requirements, or statements of work associated with the development of a request-for-

qualifications (RFQ) from competing for the advertised services (2 CFR § 200.319). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

4. The advertisement describes or will describe specific project statements-of-work that provide 

clear detail of required services without unduly restricting competition (2 CFR § 200.319). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

  



FAA Form 5100-134 (1/16) Page 2 of 3 

 

5. Sponsor has publicized or will publicize a RFQ that: 

a. Solicits an adequate number of qualified sources (2 CFR § 200.320(d)); and 

b. Identifies all evaluation criteria and relative importance (2 CFR § 200.320(d)). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

6. Sponsor has based or will base selection on qualifications, experience, and disadvantaged 

business enterprise participation with price not being a selection factor (2 CFR § 200.320(d)). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

7. Sponsor has verified or will verify that agreements exceeding $25,000 are not awarded to 

individuals or firms suspended, debarred or otherwise excluded from participating in federally 

assisted projects (2 CFR §180.300).  

 Yes    No    N/A 

8. A/E services covering multiple projects: Sponsor has agreed to or will agree to: 

a. Refrain from initiating work covered by this procurement beyond five years from the date 

of selection (AC 150/5100-14); and  

b. Retain the right to conduct new procurement actions for projects identified or not 

identified in the RFQ (AC 150/5100-14). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

9. Sponsor has negotiated or will negotiate a fair and reasonable fee with the firm they select as 

most qualified for the services identified in the RFQ (2 CFR § 200.323). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

10. The Sponsor’s contract identifies or will identify costs associated with ineligible work separately 

from costs associated with eligible work (2 CFR § 200.302). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

11. Sponsor has prepared or will prepare a record of negotiations detailing the history of the 

procurement action, rationale for contract type and basis for contract fees (2 CFR §200.318(i)). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

12. Sponsor has incorporated or will incorporate mandatory contact provisions in the consultant 

contract for AIP-assisted work (49 U.S.C. Chapter 471 and 2 CFR part 200 Appendix II) 

 Yes    No    N/A 

13. For contracts that apply a time-and-material payment provision (also known as hourly rates, 

specific rates of compensation, and labor rates), the Sponsor has established or will establish: 

a. Justification that there is no other suitable contract method for the services (2 CFR 

§200.318(j)); 

b. A ceiling price that the consultant exceeds at their risk (2 CFR §200.318(j)); and 

c. A high degree of oversight that assures consultant is performing work in an efficient 

manner with effective cost controls in place 2 CFR §200.318(j)).  

 Yes    No    N/A 



FAA Form 5100-134 (1/16) Page 3 of 3 

 

14. Sponsor is not using or will not use the prohibited cost-plus-percentage-of-cost (CPPC) contract 

method. (2 CFR § 200.323(d)). 

 Yes    No    N/A 

Attach documentation clarifying any above item marked with “no” response.  

Sponsor’s Certification 

I certify, for the project identified herein, responses to the forgoing items are accurate as marked and 

additional documentation for any item marked “no” is correct and complete. 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. I understand that knowingly and 

willfully providing false information to the federal government is a violation of 18 USC § 1001 (False 

Statements) and could subject me to fines, imprisonment, or both. 

Executed on this __________ day of ____________________, ___________.   

 Name of Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority   

 Name of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: J. Merrick Taggart 

 Title of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: Board Chairman  

Signature of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: ___________________________________ 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. I understand that knowingly and 

willfully providing false information to the federal government is a violation of 18 USC § 1001 (False 

Statements) and could subject me to fines, imprisonment, or both. 



FAA Form 5100-135 (1/16)   Page 1 of 2  

 

Certification and Disclosure Regarding Potential Conflicts of Interest 

Airport Improvement Program Sponsor Certification 

Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority  

Airport: Grand Junction Regional Airport 

Project Number: # 3-08-0027-057-2018 

Description of Work: RTR Relocation 

Application 

Title 2 CFR § 200.112 and § 1201.112 address Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) requirements for 

conflict of interest. As a condition of eligibility under the Airport Improvement Program (AIP), sponsors 

must comply with FAA policy on conflict of interest. Such a conflict would arise when any of the following 

have a financial or other interest in the firm selected for award: 

a) The employee, officer or agent,  

b) Any member of his immediate family,  

c) His or her partner, or  

d) An organization which employs, or is about to employ, any of the above. 

Selecting “yes” represents sponsor or sub-recipient acknowledgement and confirmation of the certification 

statement.  Selecting “No” represents sponsor or sub-recipient disclosure that it cannot fully comply with 

the certification statement.  If “No” is selected, provide support information explaining the negative 

response as an attachment to this form.  This includes whether the sponsor has established standards for 

financial interest that are not substantial or unsolicited gifts are of nominal value (2 CFR § 200.318(c)). 

The term “will” means Sponsor action taken at appropriate time based on the certification statement focus 

area, but no later than the end of the project period of performance. 

 

Certification Statements 

1. The sponsor or sub-recipient maintains a written standards of conduct governing conflict of 

interest and the performance of their employees engaged in the award and administration of 

contracts (2 CFR § 200.318(c)). To the extent permitted by state or local law or regulations, such 

standards of conduct provide for penalties, sanctions, or other disciplinary actions for violations of 

such standards by the sponsor’s and sub-recipient’s officers, employees, or agents, or by 

contractors or their agents.  

 Yes    No 

2. The sponsor’s or sub-recipient’s officers, employees or agents have not and will not solicit or 

accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from contractors, potential contractors, or 

parties to sub-agreements (2 CFR § 200.318(c)). 

 Yes    No 



FAA Form 5100-135 (1/16)   Page 2 of 2  

 

 
3. The sponsor or sub-recipient certifies that is has disclosed and will disclose to the FAA any 

known potential conflict of interest (2 CFR § 1200.112). 

 Yes    No 

Attach documentation clarifying any above item marked with “no” response.  

Sponsor’s Certification 

I certify, for the project identified herein, responses to the forgoing items are accurate as marked and 

have the explanation for any item marked “no” is correct and complete. 

Executed on this       day of ____________________, ___________.   

 Name of Sponsor: Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority   

 Name of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: J. Merrick Taggart 

 Title of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: Board Chairman  

Signature of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: ___________________________________ 

 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. I understand that knowingly and 

willfully providing false information to the federal government is a violation of 18 USC § 1001 (False 

Statements) and could subject me to fines, imprisonment, or both. 


	001 Cover - NOV 2017
	01- Agenda-Regular Board Meeting November 16, 2017
	1- October 17, 2017 - Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	2- Agenda Item Summary- G4S Invoice
	Agenda Item Summary- G4S Invoice
	G4S

	3- Agenda Item Summary- ARFF packs
	4- Agenda Item Summary- Sunshine addendum
	5- Agenda Item Summary- Kempton lease
	6- Agenda Item Summary- G4S addendum
	7- Agenda Item Summary- Mead & Hunt invoice RFP
	Agenda Item Summary- Mead & Hunt invoice RFP
	meadhunt-rfp-invoice

	8- Agenda Item Summary- Mead & Hunt invoice Term Bldg
	Agenda Item Summary- Mead & Hunt invoice Term Bldg
	meadhunt-term bld-invoice

	9- Agenda Item Summary- Garver invoice AIP 54
	Agenda Item Summary- Garver invoice AIP 54
	garver-invoice

	10- 1017 financial report
	11- 2017 Activity Report
	2017 November Airline Activity Report
	Presentation

	November 2017 Activity Slides
	Enplanements and Activity Report 
	Enplanements and Activity Report 
	Aircraft Changes – October 2016 vs 2017�Landings only


	12- Agenda Item Summary- CAF
	CAF Rocky Mountain Wing Request for Special Lease Treatment
	Introduction
	Request
	Rationale


	13- Agenda Item Summary- Solar Update
	14- Agenda Item Summary- Mead & Hunt invoice Rwy
	Agenda Item Summary- Mead & Hunt invoice Rwy
	meadhuntinvoice-rwy

	15- Agenda Item Summary- IHC invoice AIP 54
	Agenda Item Summary- IHC invoice AIP 54
	ihc-invoice

	16- Agenda Item Summary - AIP 54 Change Order
	Agenda Item Summary - AIP 54 Change Order
	co3

	17- Agenda Item Summary-TW A FY18 AIP 59 Grant Application
	18- Agenda Item Summary-27-1-4 Road FY18 AIP 58 Grant Application
	FAA Form 5100-133 Sponsor Cert - Land-provisional_Nov2017.pdf
	a. The term is for 20 years or the useful life of the project;
	b. The lessor is a public agency; and
	c. The lease contains no provisions that prevent full compliance with the grant agreement.
	a. The right of flight;
	b. The right of ingress and egress to remove obstructions; and
	c. The right to restrict the establishment of future obstructions.
	a. Valuation data to estimate the current market value for the property interest acquired on each parcel; and
	b. Verification that an opportunity has been provided to the property owner or representative to accompany appraisers during inspections.
	a. No coercive action to induce agreement; and
	b. Supporting documents for settlements included in the project files.
	a. Condemnation initiated and a court deposit not less than the just compensation made prior to possession of the property; and
	b. Supporting documents for awards included in the project files.

	FAA Form 5100-131 Sponsor Cert - Equip Constr-provisional_Nov2017.pdf
	a. Only one qualified person/firm submits a responsive bid;
	b. Award is to be made to other than the lowest responsible bidder; and
	c. Life cycle costing is a factor in selecting the lowest responsive bidder.
	a. Access to Records (§ 200.336)
	b. Buy American Preferences (Title 49 U.S.C. § 50101)
	c. Civil Rights - General Provisions and Title VI Assurances( 41 CFR part 60)
	d. Federal Fair Labor Standards (29 U.S.C. § 201, et seq)
	e. Occupational Safety and Health Act requirements (20 CFR part 1920)
	f. Seismic Safety – building construction (49 CFR part 41)
	g. State Energy Conservation Requirements - as applicable(2 CFR part 200, Appendix II)
	h. U.S. Trade Restriction (49 CFR part 30)
	i. Veterans Preference (49 USC § 47112(c))
	a. Davis-Bacon and Related Acts (29 CFR part 5)
	b. Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (29 CFR parts 3 and 5)
	a. Construction and equipment installation contracts - a bid guarantee of 5%, a performance bond of 100%, and a payment bond of 100% (2 CFR § 200.325);
	b. Construction and equipment installation contracts - requirements of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 USC 3701-3708, Sections 103 and 107);
	c. Restrictions on Lobbying and Influencing (2 CFR part 200, Appendix II);
	d. Conditions specifying administrative, contractual and legal remedies for instances where contractor of vendor violate or breach the terms and conditions of the contract (2 CFR §200, Appendix II); and
	e. All Contracts - Applicable standards and requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 USC 7401-7671q), Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 USC 1251-1387, and Executive Order 11738.

	FAA Form 5100-130 Sponsor Cert - Drug Free-provisional-Nov2017.pdf
	a. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
	b. The sponsor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
	c. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
	d. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace.
	a. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
	b. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction.
	a. Take appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; and
	b. Require such employee to participate satisfactorily in drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation programs approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency.

	FAA Form 5100-129 Sponsor Cert - Final Project-provisional-Nov2017.pdf
	a. Retaining source documentation of payments and verifying contractor billing statements against actual performance (2 CFR § 200.302 and FAA Order 5100.38);
	b. Prompt payment of subcontractors for satisfactory performance of work (49 CFR § 26.29);
	c. Release of applicable retainage upon satisfactory performance of work (49 CFR § 26.29); and
	d. Verification that payments to DBEs represent work the DBE performed by carrying out a commercially useful function (49 CFR §26.55).


	19- Agenda Item Summary-RTR AIP 57 Grant Application
	FAA Form 5100-133 Sponsor Cert - Land-provisional_Nov2017.pdf
	a. The term is for 20 years or the useful life of the project;
	b. The lessor is a public agency; and
	c. The lease contains no provisions that prevent full compliance with the grant agreement.
	a. The right of flight;
	b. The right of ingress and egress to remove obstructions; and
	c. The right to restrict the establishment of future obstructions.
	a. Valuation data to estimate the current market value for the property interest acquired on each parcel; and
	b. Verification that an opportunity has been provided to the property owner or representative to accompany appraisers during inspections.
	a. No coercive action to induce agreement; and
	b. Supporting documents for settlements included in the project files.
	a. Condemnation initiated and a court deposit not less than the just compensation made prior to possession of the property; and
	b. Supporting documents for awards included in the project files.

	FAA Form 5100-131 Sponsor Cert - Equip Constr-provisional_Nov2017.pdf
	Application
	a. Only one qualified person/firm submits a responsive bid;
	b. Award is to be made to other than the lowest responsible bidder; and
	c. Life cycle costing is a factor in selecting the lowest responsive bidder.
	a. Access to Records (§ 200.336)
	b. Buy American Preferences (Title 49 U.S.C. § 50101)
	c. Civil Rights - General Provisions and Title VI Assurances( 41 CFR part 60)
	d. Federal Fair Labor Standards (29 U.S.C. § 201, et seq)
	e. Occupational Safety and Health Act requirements (20 CFR part 1920)
	f. Seismic Safety – building construction (49 CFR part 41)
	g. State Energy Conservation Requirements - as applicable(2 CFR part 200, Appendix II)
	h. U.S. Trade Restriction (49 CFR part 30)
	i. Veterans Preference (49 USC § 47112(c))
	a. Davis-Bacon and Related Acts (29 CFR part 5)
	b. Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (29 CFR parts 3 and 5)
	a. Construction and equipment installation contracts - a bid guarantee of 5%, a performance bond of 100%, and a payment bond of 100% (2 CFR § 200.325);
	b. Construction and equipment installation contracts - requirements of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 USC 3701-3708, Sections 103 and 107);
	c. Restrictions on Lobbying and Influencing (2 CFR part 200, Appendix II);
	d. Conditions specifying administrative, contractual and legal remedies for instances where contractor of vendor violate or breach the terms and conditions of the contract (2 CFR §200, Appendix II); and
	e. All Contracts - Applicable standards and requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 USC 7401-7671q), Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 USC 1251-1387, and Executive Order 11738.


	FAA Form 5100-130 Sponsor Cert - Drug Free-provisional-Nov2017.pdf
	a. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
	b. The sponsor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
	c. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
	d. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace.
	a. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
	b. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction.
	a. Take appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; and
	b. Require such employee to participate satisfactorily in drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation programs approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency.

	FAA Form 5100-129 Sponsor Cert - Final Project-provisional-Nov2017.pdf
	a. Retaining source documentation of payments and verifying contractor billing statements against actual performance (2 CFR § 200.302 and FAA Order 5100.38);
	b. Prompt payment of subcontractors for satisfactory performance of work (49 CFR § 26.29);
	c. Release of applicable retainage upon satisfactory performance of work (49 CFR § 26.29); and
	d. Verification that payments to DBEs represent work the DBE performed by carrying out a commercially useful function (49 CFR §26.55).





